
 

***GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-25-20**** 

**RE CORONAVIRUS COVID-19** 

 

THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE 

GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDER WHICH SUSPENDS CERTAIN REQUIREMENTS OF THE 

RALPH M. BROWN ACT. 

 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY PARTICIPATE REMOTELY AT THE DECEMBER 10, 2020 

MEETING VIA LIVESTREAM. THE LINK(S) WILL BE PROVIDE 24 HOURS PRIOR TO THE 

MEETING.  PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA WILL BE TAKEN VIA 

LIVESTREAM AT THE TIME INDICATED ON THE AGENDA. PUBLIC COMMENT ON SPECIFIC 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WILL BE TAKEN DURING THE TIME THAT ITEM IS DISCUSSED.  
 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGULAR MEETING 
           Trustees                . 

Debbie Crandell, President 

Cristy Dawson, Clerk 

John Paff 

Brian Swanson 

Jon Walton 

Gabriella Giraldo  
 

 DATE: Thursday, December 10, 2020 
 

 TIME: 5:30 p.m. Closed Session 

  6:30 p.m. Open Session 
 

LOCATION: VIRTUAL MEETING 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://pgusd.zoom.us/j/82478911458?pwd=QUxYS3lvMUxCZFp6RHYxZEZ2Zkh1dz09 

Meeting ID: 824 7891 1458 

Passcode: 870578 

 

One tap mobile 

+12532158782,,82478911458#,,,,,,0#,,870578# US (Tacoma) 

+13017158592,,82478911458#,,,,,,0#,,870578# US (Washington D.C) 

Dial by your location 

+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington D.C) 

+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 

+1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 

Meeting ID: 824 7891 1458 

Passcode: 870578 

Find your local number: https://pgusd.zoom.us/u/kvLRnMpmd 

 

Pacific Grove Unified School District Office 

  435 Hillcrest Avenue 

  Pacific Grove, CA 93950 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 1

https://www.google.com/url?q=https%3A%2F%2Fpgusd.zoom.us%2Fj%2F82478911458%3Fpwd%3DQUxYS3lvMUxCZFp6RHYxZEZ2Zkh1dz09&sa=D&ust=1607186221483000&usg=AOvVaw0t7GAzFSXfyMUdrVrTQKNr
https://www.google.com/url?q=https%3A%2F%2Fpgusd.zoom.us%2Fu%2FkvLRnMpmd&sa=D&ust=1607186221483000&usg=AOvVaw1yOQ6tQj2GLjIfcn9TjiOm


 

The Board of Education welcomes you to its meetings, which are regularly scheduled for the first and third Thursdays of the month. Regular 

Board Meetings shall be adjourned by 10:00 pm, unless extended to a specific time determined by a majority of the Board.  This meeting 

may be extended no more than once and may be adjourned to a later date. Individuals who require special accommodation, including but not 

limited to an American Sign Language interpreter, accessible seating or documentation in accessible formats, should contact the 

Superintendent at least two days before the meeting date. 
 

Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to a majority of the Governing Board regarding an open session item on 

this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the District Office located at 435 Hillcrest Avenue, Pacific Grove during normal 

business hours. 

 

AGENDA AND ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

I. OPENING BUSINESS 

 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Roll Call 

 

C. Adoption of Agenda 

 

Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 

 

Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___ 

 

II. CLOSED SESSION 

 

A. Identify Closed Session Topics  

The Board of Education will meet in Closed Session to consider matters appropriate for Closed 

Session in accordance with Education and Government Code. 

 

1. Negotiations - Collective Bargaining Session planning and preparation with the PGTA for  

2020-21 [Government Code § 3549.1 (d)] Executive session between the public school employer 

and its designated representatives, Buck Roggeman, Song Chin-Bendib and Ralph Gómez Porras, 

for the purpose of giving direction and updates. 

 

2. Negotiations - Collective Bargaining Session planning and preparation with the CSEA for  

2020-21 [Government Code § 3549.1 (d)] Executive session between the public school employer 

and its designated representatives, Billie Mankey, Song Chin-Bendib and Ralph Gómez Porras 

for the purpose of giving direction and updates.  

 

3. Conference with Legal Counsel regarding Existing Litigation pursuant to paragraph (1) of 

subdivision (d) of Government Code section 54956.9 

 Name of Case:  Austin v. John Doe Monterey County Superior Court Case No. 20CV001686 

 

4. Public Employee Evaluation (1 case)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 2



 

III. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION  

 

A. Report action taken in Closed Session: 

 

1. Negotiations - Collective Bargaining Session planning and preparation with the PGTA  

for 2020-21 [Government Code § 3549.1 (d)]  

 

2. Negotiations - Collective Bargaining Session planning and preparation with the CSEA  

for 2020-21 [Government Code § 3549.1 (d)]  

 

3. Conference with Legal Counsel regarding Existing Litigation pursuant to paragraph (1) of 

subdivision (d) of Government Code section 54956.9 

 Name of Case:  Austin v. John Doe Monterey County Superior Court Case No. 20CV001686 

 

4. Public Employee Evaluation (1 case)  

 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

IV. COMMUNICATIONS 

 

A. Written Communication 

 

B. Board Member Comments 

 

C. Superintendent Report 

 

D.  PGUSD Staff Comments (Non Agenda Items) 

 

V. INDIVIDUALS DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
 

Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be heard.  The Board 

may limit comments to no more than three (3) minutes for each agenda or non-agenda item; a total time for public 

input on each item is 20 minutes, pursuant to Board Policy 9323.  Public comment will also be allowed on each 

specific action item prior to Board action thereon. This meeting of the Board of Education is a business meeting of 

the Board, conducted in public. Please note that the Brown Act limits the Board’s ability to respond to public comment. 

The Board may choose to direct items to the Administration for action or place an item on a future agenda. 

 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA   
 

Items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and/or may have been discussed at a previous Board 

meeting.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote unless a member of the Board requests specific 

items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Agenda. Each item on the Consent Agenda approved by the Board of 

Trustees shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended. 

 

A. Minutes of November 19, 2020 Board Meeting 8 

Recommendation: (Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent) Approval of minutes as presented. 

 

B. Certificated Assignment Order #8 14 

Recommendation: (Billie Mankey, Director II of Human Resources) The Administration  

recommends adoption of Certificated Assignment Order #8. 

 

 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 3



 

C. Classified Assignment Order #8                         16 

Recommendation: (Billie Mankey, Director II of Human Resources) The Administration  

recommends adoption of Classified Assignment Order #8. 

 

D. Acceptance of Donations                    18 

Recommendation:  (Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent) The Administration  

Recommends that the Board approve acceptance of the donations referenced below. 

 

E. Warrant Schedule No. 626                          19 

Recommendation: (Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent) As Assistant Superintendent  

for Business Services, I certify that I have reviewed the attached warrants for consistency with the 

District’s budget, and purchasing and accounting practices and therefore, recommend Board  

approval. 

 

F. Cash Receipts Report No. 2                          21 

Recommendation:  (Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent) As Assistant Superintendent  

For Business Services, I have reviewed the receipt and deposit of the identified Cash Receipts for 

consistency with District policies and procedures and certify that the actions have been  

appropriately conducted. I recommend Board approval of the Cash Receipts. 

 

G. Revolving Cash Report No. 1                   24 

Recommendation:  (Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent) As Assistant Superintendent  

for Business Services, I have reviewed the Revolving Cash payments for consistency with District  

budget policy and accounting practices and certify their consistency and recommend approval  

of the payments by the Board. 

 

H. Contract for Services with John Aulenta for Independent Education Evaluation       26 

Recommendation:  (Clare Davies, Director of Student Services) The District Administration 

recommends that the Board review and approve the contract for services with John Aulenta for an 

Independent Education Evaluation as required by the Individuals with Disabilities Act (IDEA). 

 

I. Contract for Services with BMR Health Services Inc. for a Speech and Language Therapist      29 

Recommendation:  (Clare Davies, Director of Student Services) The District Administration 

recommends the Board review and approve a contract for services with BMR Health Services Inc. to 

provide a California Licensed Speech and Language Therapist. 

 

J. Contract for Services with Graide Network                    39 

Recommendation:  (Sean Roach, Pacific Grove Middle School Principal) The District  

Administration recommends the Board review and approve the contract for services with Graide 

Network at Pacific Grove Middle School for grading and feedback services for English Language 

Arts Department. 

 

Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 

  

Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

 

 

 

 

 

 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 4



 

VII. ACTION/DISCUSSION 

 

A. Adoption of Board Policy 0470 COVID-19 Mitigation Plan              42 

Recommendation: (Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent) The District Administration recommends 

that the Board review and adopt the new Board Policy 0470 COVID-19 Mitigation Plan.  

 

Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 

  

Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

 

B. Approval of the 2020-21 First Interim Report 55 

Recommendation: (Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent) The Administration recommends 

that the Board review and approve the 2020-21 First Interim Report. 

 

Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 

  

Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

 

C. Local Control Funding Formula Budget Overview for Parents 182 

Recommendation: (Ani Silva, Director of Curriculum and Special Projects) The District 

Administration recommends that the Board review and approve the 2020-2021 Local Control 

Funding Formula Budget Overview for Parents. 

 

Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 

  

Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

 

D. Approval of Forest Grove Elementary School Site Hybrid Plan 186 

Recommendation: (Buck Roggeman, Forest Grove Elementary School Principal) The  

Administration recommends that the Board approve the Forest Grove Elementary School  

Overview for Reopening Plan as presented. The plan is based on State/County guidelines, as well  

as direction from the Board and committee members.  

 

Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 

  

Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

 

E. Approval of Robert Down Elementary School Site Hybrid Plan 192 

Recommendation: (:  Sean Keller, Robert H. Down Elementary School Principal) The  

Administration recommends that the Board approve the Robert H. Down Elementary School 

Overview for Reopening Plan as presented. The plan is based on State/County guidelines, as well  

as direction from the Board and committee members.  

 

Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 

  

Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

 

 

 

 

 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 5



 

F. Approval of Pacific Grove Middle School Site Hybrid Plan 196 

Recommendation: (Sean Roach, Pacific Grove Middle School Principal) The Administration 

recommends that the Board approve one of two options of the Pacific Grove Middle School  

schedule (plan), as presented. The first plan submitted for approval is the A/B Hybrid schedule,  

in which students would attend full time (three classes) on site two days a week. The second plan 

submitted for approval is the Am/Pm Hybrid schedule, in which all students would be attending 

school on site four days per week, either in the morning or afternoon. These plans are based on 

State/County guidelines, as well as direction from the Board and committee members.  

 

Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 

  

Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

 

G. Approval of Pacific Grove High School Site Hybrid Plan 202 

Recommendation: (Lito Garcia, Pacific Grove High School Principal) The Administration 

recommends that the Board approve the Pacific Grove High School hybrid schedule, as presented. 

The plan is based on State/County guidelines with input from staff. 

 

Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 

  

Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

 

H. Approval of Community High School Site Hybrid Plan 206 

Recommendation: (Lito Garcia, Community High School Principal) The Administration  

recommends that the Board approve the Pacific Grove Community High School hybrid schedule, 

as presented. The plan is based on State/County guidelines with input from staff. 

 

Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 

  

Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

 

I. Pacific Grove Unified School District- Pacific Grove Teachers Association Special Education       210 

Small Group Addendum to COVID-19 Memorandum of Understanding 

Recommendation: (Billie Mankey, Director II of Human Resources; Buck Roggeman, PGUSD Lead 

Negotiator) The Administration recommends that the Board review and approve the Memorandum of 

Understanding with Pacific Grove Teachers Association Regarding School Closures.  

    

Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 

  

Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

 

J. Board Calendar/Future Meetings    221 

Recommendation: (Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent) The Administration recommends  

that the Board review and possibly modify meeting dates on the attached calendar and determine,  

given information from the Administration, whether additional Board dates or modifications need 

to be established.  

 

Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 

  

Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 6



 

VIII. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

 

A. District Update on Response to COVID-19 224 

Recommendation: (Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent) The District Administration will  

update the Board, staff and community on current District response and protocols to COVID-19. 

 

Board Direction:  

 

B. Review of Special Education Contracts                     225 

Recommendation: (Clare Davies, Director of Student Services) The District Administration 

recommends that the Board review the present and projected status of Special Education contracts. 
 

Board Direction:  

 

C. Future Agenda Items  227 

Recommendation: (Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent) The Administration recommends  

that the Board review the list of future agenda items and direct Administration to add items to  

the list and/or schedule items for a particular agenda. 

 

• A member of the public requested Dual Language Elementary Program (March 18, 2021) 

• Board requested an update about teacher housing (TBD) 

• Board requested a presentation on Diversify Our Narrative 

• Board requested a renewed discussion about district solar panels (Spring 2021) 

• A member of the public requested that the Board consider streaming all Board meetings after 

COVID conditions 

• A member of the public requested a review of Board Policy 6154 Homework/Make Up Work 

regarding homework assignments over school breaks and holidays 

• A member of the public requested the District review how to improve Distance Learning for 

students and families including: 

▪ Survey to families 

▪ Review of instructional minutes of the elementary schools 

▪ Review of grades and enrollment levels 

• Board requested academic review of grades by grade level including AP for middle and high 

school 

 

Board Direction:  

 

IX.  ADJOURNMENT 

   

Next Board meeting will be the Organizational and Regular Board meeting: December 17, 2020 – VIRTUAL 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 7



PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Minutes of Regular Meeting of November 19, 2020 – VIRTUAL 

I. OPENED BUSINESS

A. Called to Order 6:30 p.m. 

B. Roll Call President: Trustee Crandell 

Clerk: Trustee Dawson 

Trustees Present: Trustee Paff 

Trustee Swanson 

Trustee Walton 

 Administration Present: Superintendent Porras 

Asst. Superintendent Chin-Bendib 

Board Recorder: Mandi Ackerman 

Student Board Member: Gabriela Giraldo  

C. Adopted Agenda

Changes to the agenda include a reorder of Information Items. Information Item B was

moved to Information Item A.

MOTION Crandell/Dawson to adopt agenda as amended.

Public comment:  none

Motion CARRIED by roll call vote 5 – 0

D. Pledge of Allegiance Led By: Trustee Crandell 

II/III. CLOSED SESSION 

Closed session was cancelled. 

IV. COMMUNICATIONS

A. Written Communication

The Board received email communications regarding Distance Learning requirements; safety

concerns regarding COVID-19; Tech update; conditioning pods information; and community

service items on the agenda.

B. Board Member Comments

Pacific Grove High School Student Representative Giraldo provided an update to the Board

on the events and activities happening at the school including Senior Snack Drive,

Movember, a communication audit, Welcoming committee, video bulletin, Open Mic Night,

and Online Spirit Day.

Trustee Crandell thanked Trustee Dawson for covering the last Board meeting; Trustee

Crandell listened to the audio from the previous meeting.

CONSENT A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 8



 

 

Trustee Dawson said it was great to have such thorough updates from Student Representative 

Giraldo; noted she feels thankful and that there is light at the end of the tunnel. 

 

Trustee Paff thanked Pacific Grove High School Principal Lito Garcia for the photo of the 

Conditioning Day at Pacific Grove High School. 

 

Trustee Swanson participated in the New Trustee Q&A with District Directors, said the 

meeting was educational and enlightening and noted the enthusiasm everyone has for their 

work. Trustee Swanson also acknowledged Pacific Grove Middle School Music Teacher 

Barbara Priest for allowing him to be a guest speaker in her class, and said it was thrilling to 

be a part of it. 

 

Trustee Walton is part of the Pacific Grove Housing Advisory Group and said more 

information would be coming; noted why it is important for Pacific Grove to offer affordable 

housing in the community.  

 

C. Superintendent Report 

 

Superintendent Porras wished a restful and peaceful Thanksgiving to all staff and families. 

 

D. PGUSD Staff Comments (Non-Agenda Items) 

 

Pacific Grove High School Teacher Larry Haggquist spoke about Open Mic Night, Poetry 

Club and collaboration with the Leadership class. 

 

Director of Curriculum and Special Projects Ani Silva announced the county and state 

approved the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for the District. 

 

Forest Grove Elementary School Principal Buck Roggeman noted both elementary schools 

held parent teacher conferences this week and said he is proud of the teachers for their work. 

Principal Roggeman also noted a principal check-in would be coming for parents to ask 

questions regarding reopening plans.  

 

V. INDIVIDUALS DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD   

 

Mrs. Chavez spoke about the expectations of students during Thanksgiving break and asked if 

homework is assigned during holidays, noting a recent experience of homework assigned during a 

holiday; expressed frustration.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 9



 

 

 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA    

 

A. Minutes of November 12, 2020 Board Meeting 

B. Classified Assignment Order #7 

C. Acceptance of Donations 

D. Contract for Services with Psyched Services 

E. Contract for Services with Paul Contos 

 

Public comment:   

Carolyn Swanson asked about the funding source for Item D, including the absent position 

and if the position is being filled.  

Director of Student Services Clare Davies clarified the position situation.  

  

MOTION Dawson/Crandell to approve consent agenda as presented. 

Motion CARRIED by roll call vote 5 – 0  

 

VII. ACTION/DISCUSSION  

 

A. Waiver of Board Policy and Regulation 6142.4 Learning Through Community Service for 

Pacific Grove High School and Community High School    

 

Pacific Grove High School and Community High School Principal Lito Garcia presented 

information to the Board. The Board discussed this item.  

 

Public comment:   

Mr. Chavez noted consideration of vaccinations and said the Board should consider 

keeping the children safe. 

 

Teacher Kari Serpa noted life is so hard for children during this time and asked the Board 

to make things easier, saying it is a nice thing to do.  

 

Sara Schram appreciates the reduction to seniors, said 9th through 11th grades should not 

be reduced, noted her non-profit receives help from high school students in Pacific 

Grove, said other organizations have come up with solutions to utilize volunteers. 

 

Mrs. Chavez noted it is hard for students to get the hours done during this time.  

 

MOTION Walton/Crandell to approve the waiver of Board Policy and Regulation 

6142.4 Learning Through Community Service for Pacific Grove High School and 

Community High School, as presented. 

Motion CARRIED by roll call vote 3 – 2  

 

Trustee Dawson and Trustee Paff voted against.      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 10



 

 

 

B. Waiver of Board Policy 6142.4 Learning Through Community Service for Pacific Grove  

Middle School     

 

Pacific Grove Middle School Principal Sean Roach presented information to the Board. The 

Board discussed this item.  

 

Public comment:   

Angela Lippert spoke about her middle school child, said All in Monterey has 

opportunities to volunteer. 

 

Jaime Guthrie asked Principal Roach to clarify the requirements per grade. 

 

MOTION Crandell/Dawson to approve the Waiver of Board Policy 6142.4 Learning 

Through Community Service for Pacific Grove Middle School, as presented. 

Motion CARRIED by roll call vote 4 – 1  

 

Trustee Paff voted against.  

 

C. Approve Legal Fee Agreement with Davis & Young, APLC 

 

Assistant Superintendent Chin-Bendib presented information to the Board. 

 

MOTION Paff/Dawson to approve the legal fee agreement with Davis & Young, 

APLC. 

Public comment:  none  

Motion CARRIED by roll call vote 5 – 0 

 

D. Approval of Temporary Classroom Structure at David Avenue for Monterey Bay Charter 

School        

 

Jessica Guzzi of Monterey Bay Charter School presented information to the Board and 

answered questions along with Steve Vaden. The Board discussed this item.  

 

MOTION Paff/Crandell to approve the temporary classroom structure at David 

Avenue for Monterey Bay Charter School, with amendments not to invoke the 

credit clause for improvements and the District will not be responsible for 

maintenance of the structure. 

Public comment:  none  

Motion CARRIED by roll call vote 5 – 0  

 

E. Board Calendar/Future Meetings   

 

The Board directed Administration to note January-June Board meetings as virtual.  

 

Public comment:   

Carolyn Swanson asked about the Special Education contracts review which was noted 

on November 19.  

Superintendent Porras noted the calendar is intended as a guideline.  

 

No action.  

CONSENT A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 11



 

 

 

VIII. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

 

A. District Update on Response to COVID-19 

 

Superintendent Porras spoke about current COVID-19 conditions, the hope of vaccines, 

noting the District does not anticipate returning to hybrid/in-person learning in January.  

 

Forest Grove Elementary School Principal Buck Roggeman, Robert Down Elementary 

School Principal Sean Keller, Pacific Grove Middle School Principal Sean Roach, and Pacific 

Grove High School and Community High School Principal Lito Garcia presented site plans.  

 

Public comment:   

Carolyn Swanson spoke about the waiver, tiers, noted the District is spending a lot of 

time talking about hybrid plans and said the District will likely continue Distance 

Learning and asked for better communication with families on Distance Learning; noted 

a complaint-driven system; noted six families approached her personally and said they do 

not feel comfortable talking to their children’s teachers or principals; asked the District to 

focus on improving Distance Learning by opening communication with families.  

 

Robin Pelc asked the District to make BASRP work for families.  

 

Ivy Kong asked how AM/PM schedules benefit students. 

 

Maryn Sanchez expressed concerns over hybrid models and asked if parents will have 

input if their children will be assigned different teachers.  

 

Katie Selfridge asked the Board to consider similar bell schedules for elementary and 

middle school for students who take care of siblings. 

 

The Board discussed this item and asked questions.  

 

B. Facilities Project Updates 

 

Director of Facilities and Transportation Matt Kelly presented facilities projects. 

 

Public comment:   

Kilene Brosseau asked about hand sanitizing stations outside classrooms.  

Director Kelly noted the CDC encouraged hand washing stations and said it is possible to 

install more hand sanitizing stations in the Spring.  

 

Robin Pelc spoke about airborne transmission, expressed concerns regarding the HVAC 

systems.  

 

Steve Thomas asked if the District has considered outdoor classrooms; asked about UV 

units in rooms; asked about custodians and the alternate plan if one becomes sick; asked 

about plexiglass on all desks; asked for updates to all families. 

Director Kelly noted the District is looking into Wi-Fi outside; UV units were discussed 

however cost and effectiveness was a concern. 

 

CONSENT A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 12



 

 

Kilene Brosseau asked about child restrooms, noting students won’t necessarily follow 

hand washing protocol.  

Director Kelly noted District Nurse Katrina Powley provided hand sanitizer for each 

classroom.  

 

C. Future Agenda Items  

 

• A member of the public requested Dual Language Elementary Program (March 18, 2021) 

• Board requested an update about teacher housing (TBD) 

• Board requested a presentation on Diversify Our Narrative 

• Board requested a renewed discussion about district solar panels (Spring 2021) 

• A member of the public requested that the Board consider streaming all Board meetings 

after COVID conditions 

 

Trustee Dawson asked for a grade breakdown at the end of January or February, comparing 

F’s and incompletes to previous years; first and second quarter hard data academic trends, for 

middle and high schools. Trustee Paff requested AP be included in this report.  

 

Public comment:   

Carolyn Swanson requested a review of Board Policy 6154 Homework/Make Up Work 

regarding homework assignments over school breaks and holidays; how to improve 

Distance Learning for students and families including a survey to families, a review of 

instructional minutes of the elementary schools, a review of grades and enrollment levels. 

 

IX.  ADJOURNED 10:00 p.m. 

 

 Approved and submitted: 

 

 

 ______________________________ 

 

 Dr. Ralph Gómez Porras 

 Secretary to the Board 

CONSENT A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 13



☒Consent  

☐Information/Discussion 

☐Action/Discussion 

 

SUBJECT: Certificated Assignment Order #8 

 

DATE: December 10, 2020            

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Billie Mankey, Director II, Human Resources  

 

Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The administration recommends adoption of Certificated Assignment Order #8. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Under Board Policies #4200 and #4211, the Human Resource Office is directed by the 

Superintendent and the Board of Education to employ the most highly qualified person available 

for each position.  Recruitment and selection procedures include dissemination of vacancy 

announcements to newspapers, trade journals, the internet through the Pacific Grove Unified 

School District website, Monterey County Office of Education website and other recruitment 

websites in California.  The recommendation to hire a selected candidate is made after weighing 

the information obtained by the complete application package, the interview process, and 

confidential reference checks.  No inquiry is made with regard to the age, sex, race, color, 

religion, national origin, disability or sexual orientation.  

 

 

INFORMATION: 

 

Persons listed in the Certificated Assignment Order are being recommended to the Board of 

Education for employment in the District.  No individual is recommended to the Board of 

Education for employment prior to receipt of the criminal background summary.  

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Funding has been approved and allocated for these items. 

 

CONSENT B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 14



 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT   
CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL ASSIGNMENT ORDER NO. 8 

December 10, 2020 

 Page 2 of 2 

 

LEAVE OF ABSENCE: 

Kayla Gordano, FGE Teacher, 4th Grade, requests and qualifies for maternity/paternity leave 

effective November 30, 2020 

 

SUBSTITUTE: 

Kelly San Filippo 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 15



 ☒Consent  

☐Information/Discussion 

☐Action/Discussion 

 

SUBJECT: Classified Assignment Order #8 

 

DATE: December 10, 2020   

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Billie Mankey, Director II, Human Resources  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

           Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The administration recommends adoption of Classified Assignment Order #8 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Under Board Policies #4200 and #4211, the Human Resource Office is directed by the 

Superintendent and the Board of Education to employ the most highly qualified person available 

for each position.  Recruitment and selection procedures include dissemination of vacancy 

announcements to newspapers, trade journals, the internet through the Pacific Grove Unified 

School District website, Monterey County Office of Education website and other recruitment 

websites in California.  The recommendation to hire a selected candidate is made after weighing 

the information obtained by the complete application package, the interview process, and 

confidential reference checks.  No inquiry is made with regard to the age, sex, race, color, 

religion, national origin, disability or sexual orientation.  

 

INFORMATION: 

 

Persons listed in the Classified Assignment Order are being recommended to the Board of 

Education for employment in the District.  No individual is recommended to the Board of 

Education for employment prior to receipt of the criminal background summary.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Funding has been approved and allocated for these items.  

CONSENT C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 16



PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL ASSIGNMENT ORDER NO. 8 

December 10, 2020 

Page 2 of 2 

 

ADDITIONAL ASSIGNMENT: 

Michelle Mitchell, FGE, Instructional Assistant, 1.5 hrs./day/180 day work calendar, Range 30, 

Step A,  effective December 3, 2020 (replaces Sally Jones) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 17



☒Consent  

☐Action/Discussion 

☐Information/Discussion 

☐Public Hearing 

 

SUBJECT:  Acceptance of Donations 

 

DATE:  December 10, 2020 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

  

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Administration recommends that the Board approve acceptance of donations referenced below. 

 

INFORMATION: 

During the past month the following donations were received: 

 

Forest Grove Elementary School 

None 

 

Robert H. Down Elementary School 

None 

 

Pacific Grove Middle School  

PGMS PTA       $5,670  (lunch clubs, teacher materials) 

           

Pacific Grove High School 

OhioPyle Prints       $     26.33  (undesignated) 

        

Pacific Grove Community High School  

None 

 

Pacific Grove Adult School /Lighthouse Preschool &  

Preschool Plus Co-op       

None 

 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

None 

CONSENT D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 18



☒Consent  

☐Information/Discussion 

☐Action/Discussion 

☐Public Hearing 

 

SUBJECT: Warrant Schedule 626 

 

DATE:  December 10, 2020 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

As Assistant Superintendent for Business Services, I certify that I have reviewed the attached warrants for 

consistency with the District’s budget, and purchasing and accounting practices and therefore, 

recommend Board approval. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The attached listing of warrants identifies payments made by the District during the noted time period 

from November 1, 2020 through November 30, 2020. 

 

INFORMATION: 

 

Prior to the issuance of the warrants, District procedures have been followed to ensure the appropriateness 

of the item purchased, the correctness of the amount to be paid, and that funds were available within the 

appropriate budget.  All necessary site, department, and district authorizations have been obtained. 

 

Please note a full copy of the warrants are available by request.  

CONSENT E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 19



WARRANTS - PAYROLL

Certificated Regular 11/05/20 -$                       
Regular 11/10/20 2,426.41$             
Regular 11/15/20 -$                       
Regular 11/30/20 1,698,115.23$      

Total Certificated 1,700,541.64$      

Other Regular 11/05/20 -$                       
Regular 11/10/20 -$                       
Regular 11/15/20 -$                       
Regular 11/30/20 1,522.33$             

Total Other 1,522.33$             

Classified Regular 11/05/20 -$                       
Regular 11/10/20 1,121.80$             
Regular 11/15/20 -$                       
Regular 11/30/20 639,778.82$         

Total Classified 640,900.62$         

TOTAL PAYROLL 2,342,964.59$     

WARRANTS - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Warrants 12587069 through 12587086 11/03/02 48,386.60$           
Warrants 12587859 through 12587903 11/12/20 65,942.81$           
Warrants 12588793 through 12588829 11/17/20 74,554.80$           
Warrants 12590171 through 12590212 11/24/20 56,316.68$           

TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 245,200.89$         

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOVEMBER 2020

WARRANT SCHEDULE NO. 626

CONSENT E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 20



☒Consent  

☐Information/Discussion 

☐Action/Discussion 

☐Public Hearing 

 

SUBJECT: Cash Receipts Report No. 2 

 

DATE:  December 10, 2020 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

As Assistant Superintendent for Business Services, I have reviewed the receipt and deposit of the 

identified Cash Receipts for consistency with District policies and procedures and certify that the actions 

have been appropriately conducted. I recommend Board approval of the Cash Receipts. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The attached listing identifies Cash Receipts received by the District during the period of  

August 18, 2020 through November 23, 2020. 

 

INFORMATION: 

 

The receipt and deposit of the identified funds were conducted consistent with District policies and 

procedures within the appropriate revenue accounts. 

 

 

CONSENT F

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 21



CONSENT F

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 22



CONSENT F

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 23



☒Consent  

☐Information/Discussion 

☐Action/Discussion 

☐Public Hearing 

 

SUBJECT: Revolving Cash Report No. 1 

 

DATE:  December 10, 2020 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

As Assistant Superintendent for Business Services, I have reviewed the Revolving Cash payments for 

consistency with District budget policy and accounting practices and certify their consistency and 

recommend approval of the payments by the Board. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The attached listing identifies payments made from the Revolving Cash Fund during the period from  

July 1, 2020 through November 23, 2020. 

 

INFORMATION: 

 

Prior to the approval of the identified payments, appropriate District procedures were followed and 

authorizations obtained. 

 
 

CONSENT G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 24



CONSENT G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 25



  

☒Consent  

☐Information/Discussion 

☐Action/Discussion 

 

SUBJECT: Contract for Services with John Aulenta for Independent Education Evaluation   

 

DATE:  December 10, 2020 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Clare Davies, Director of Student Services  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The District Administration recommends that the Board review and approve the contract for services with 

John Aulenta for an Independent Education Evaluation as required by the Individuals with Disabilities 

Act (IDEA). 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Students with disabilities are entitled to an Independent Education Evaluation (IEE) at public expense 

when parents disagree with an evaluation completed by the public school district.  Upon receipt of a 

signed written consent to assess, the Local Education Agency (LEA) will initiate a contract with a 

qualified evaluator who is not employed by the LEA. 

 

INFORMATION: 

 

Parent request for an Independent Education Evaluation was granted as per SELPA IEE policies. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

$1,800 

Previously budgeted 

Funding code: 01-0000-0-1110-3140-5800-00-000-5400-0750 

  

CONSENT H

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 26



 PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 435 Hillcrest Avenue 

 Pacific Grove, CA  93950 

 CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
(To be used for provision of services involving no potential for liability exposure for District) 

 

This contract is an agreement between the Pacific Grove Unified School District and John Aulenta, M.A., 

Independent Education Psychologist for services rendered as specified below. 

 1. Scope of Service: 

  To provide an Independent Education Evaluation for a student. 

 

2. Expected outcome(s) 

A psychoeducational evaluation is conducted and an assessment report provided to the 

student’s IEP team for consideration of eligibility to receive special education services. 

 

3. Dates of Service: 

July 2020-December 2020 

 

4. Financial Arrangements: 

$1,800 

Funding code: 01-0000-0-1110-3140-5800-00-000-5400-0750   

 

Consultant:  John Aulenta, M.A. 

Address:  667 Lighthouse Ave., Suite 301, Pacific Grove, CA 93950 

Signed             Date  _________________  

  District Employee        X Independent Consultant * 

 

Signed             Date  _______________  

  Site/Program Administrator – (Check appropriate box below) 

 

Contracted work was assigned using District’s normal employment recruitment process. 

Contracted work was not assigned using District’s normal employment recruitment process.   

Attached Criteria Page (REQUIRED) identifies reason. 

 

Signed______________________________________________________ Date____________________ 

                   Director of Human Resources 

 

Signed             Date       

  Asst. Supt./Supt. 

 

ALL SIGNATURES MUST BE OBTAINED BEFORE SERVICES ARE PROVIDED. 

*Independent Consultant must sign and submit a W-9 to District prior to providing service. 

Revised 9/05

CONSENT H

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 27



 

 

Contract for Services Criteria 

District/Site Administrator – Please circle criteria that applies and sign below. 

(1) There is a specifically documented cost savings relative to using district employment. (The 

documentation requirements are specified and must be attached). 

(2)  The contract is for new school district functions and the Legislature has specifically mandated or 

authorized the performance of the work by independent contractors.  

 

(3) X The services contracted are not available within the district, cannot be performed satisfactorily by 

school district employees, or are of such a highly specialized or technical nature that the necessary 

expert knowledge, experience, and ability are not available through the school district. 

 

(4) The services are incidental to a contract for the purchase or lease of real or personal property. 

Contracts under this criterion, known as "service agreements," shall include, but not be limited to, 

agreements to service or maintain office equipment or computers that are leased or rented. 

 

(5) The policy, administrative, or legal goals and purposes of the district cannot be accomplished 

through the utilization of persons selected pursuant to the regular or ordinary school district hiring 

process. Contracts are permissible under this criterion to protect against a conflict of interest or to 

ensure independent and unbiased findings in cases where there is a clear need for a different, outside 

perspective. These contracts shall include, but not be limited to, obtaining expert witnesses in 

litigation.  

 

(6) The nature of the work is such that the criteria for emergency appointments apply. "Emergency 

appointment"   means an appointment made for a period not to exceed 60 working days either during 

an actual emergency to prevent the stoppage of public business or because of the limited duration of 

the work. The method of selection and the qualification standards for an emergency employee shall 

be determined by the district. The frequency of appointment, length of employment, and the 

circumstances appropriate for the appointment of firms or individuals under emergency 

appointments shall be restricted so as to prevent the use of emergency appointments to circumvent 

the regular or ordinary hiring process.  

 

(7)  The contractor will provide equipment, materials, facilities, or support services that could not 

feasibly be provided by the school district in the location where the services are to be performed.  

 

(8)  The services are of such an urgent, temporary, or occasional nature that the delay incumbent in their 

implementation under the district's regular or ordinary hiring process would frustrate their very purpose.  

 

 

 

____________________________________________  ________________ 

District/Site Administrator      Date 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
Ref: Contract for Services Criteria 

  

CONSENT H

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 28



  

☒Consent  

☐Information/Discussion 

☐Action/Discussion 

 

SUBJECT: Contract for Services with BMR Health Services Inc. for a Speech and Language Therapist  

 

DATE:  December 10, 2020 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Clare Davies, Director of Student Services  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The District Administration recommends the Board review and approve a contract for services with BMR 

Health Services Inc. to provide a California Licensed Speech and Language Therapist. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Due to a resignation, the School District requires a contracted Speech and Language Therapist to fill a 

vacancy for the remainder of the 2020/2021 school year. 

 

INFORMATION: 

 

The school district followed traditional recruitment methods to hire a Speech and Language therapist to 

fill a vacancy at Forest Grove Elementary school.  Given no suitable and/or available applicants, the 

district is requesting to move forward by entering into a contract with an agency to fill this vacancy for 

the remainder of the 2020-2021 school year. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

$71,400 

Funds redirected from the vacated SLP position $49,000 and LEA funds $22,400 

into contracted services 01-0000-0-1110-3140-5800-00-000-5400-0750   

 

  

CONSENT I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 29



 PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 435 Hillcrest Avenue 

 Pacific Grove, CA  93950 

 CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
(To be used for provision of services involving no potential for liability exposure for District) 

 

This contract is an agreement between the Pacific Grove Unified School District and 

BMR Health Services Inc. for services rendered as specified below. 

 1. Scope of Service: 

  To provide a California licensed Speech and Language Therapist to cover a vacancy for the 

remainder of the 2020-21 school year. 

 

2. Expected outcome(s) 

SLP will conduct assessments, provide assessment reports, develop and attend IEP meetings, 

and provide individual, small group and push in large group therapy as determined by 

students’ IEPs. 

 

3. Dates of Service: 

December 18, 2020 through May 28, 2020 as per PGUSD teacher workdays 

 

 4. Financial Arrangements:  

$71,400      

  Funding Source-Contracted Services 
  01-0000-0-1110-3140-5800-00-000-5400-0750 

 

Consultant:  BMR Health Services Inc. 

Address: 7041 Koll Center Parkway, Ste #210, Pleasanton, CA-94566  

Signed             Date  _________________  

  District Employee        X Independent Consultant * 

 

Signed             Date  _______________  

  Site/Program Administrator – (Check appropriate box below) 

 

Contracted work was assigned using District’s normal employment recruitment process. 

Contracted work was not assigned using District’s normal employment recruitment process.   

Attached Criteria Page (REQUIRED) identifies reason. 

 

Signed______________________________________________________ Date____________________ 

                   Director of Human Resources 

 

Signed             Date       

  Asst. Supt./Supt. 

 

ALL SIGNATURES MUST BE OBTAINED BEFORE SERVICES ARE PROVIDED. 

*Independent Consultant must sign and submit a W-9 to District prior to providing service. 

Revised 9/05

CONSENT I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 30



 

 

Contract for Services Criteria 

District/Site Administrator – Please circle criteria that applies and sign below. 

(1) There is a specifically documented cost savings relative to using district employment. (The 

documentation requirements are specified and must be attached). 

(2)  The contract is for new school district functions and the Legislature has specifically mandated or 

authorized the performance of the work by independent contractors.  

 

(3) X The services contracted are not available within the district, cannot be performed satisfactorily by 

school district employees, or are of such a highly specialized or technical nature that the necessary 

expert knowledge, experience, and ability are not available through the school district. 

 

(4) The services are incidental to a contract for the purchase or lease of real or personal property. 

Contracts under this criterion, known as "service agreements," shall include, but not be limited to, 

agreements to service or maintain office equipment or computers that are leased or rented. 

 

(5) The policy, administrative, or legal goals and purposes of the district cannot be accomplished 

through the utilization of persons selected pursuant to the regular or ordinary school district hiring 

process. Contracts are permissible under this criterion to protect against a conflict of interest or to 

ensure independent and unbiased findings in cases where there is a clear need for a different, outside 

perspective. These contracts shall include, but not be limited to, obtaining expert witnesses in 

litigation.  

 

(6) The nature of the work is such that the criteria for emergency appointments apply. "Emergency 

appointment"   means an appointment made for a period not to exceed 60 working days either during 

an actual emergency to prevent the stoppage of public business or because of the limited duration of 

the work. The method of selection and the qualification standards for an emergency employee shall 

be determined by the district. The frequency of appointment, length of employment, and the 

circumstances appropriate for the appointment of firms or individuals under emergency 

appointments shall be restricted so as to prevent the use of emergency appointments to circumvent 

the regular or ordinary hiring process.  

 

(7)  The contractor will provide equipment, materials, facilities, or support services that could not 

feasibly be provided by the school district in the location where the services are to be performed.  

 

(8)  The services are of such an urgent, temporary, or occasional nature that the delay incumbent in their 

implementation under the district's regular or ordinary hiring process would frustrate their very purpose.  

 

 

 

____________________________________________  ________________ 

District/Site Administrator      Date 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
Ref: Contract for Services Criteria 

  

CONSENT I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 31



 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
7041 Koll Center Parkway, Ste.210       
Pleasanton, CA 94566       
Phone: +1 855 828 3200       

www.BMRhealth.com 
 
 

 

STAFFING AND PLACEMENT AGREEMENT 

This Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into on December 11, 2020 between BMR Health Services, 
Inc("Provider”), with its principal place of business located at 7041 Koll Center Parkway, Ste # 210, 
Pleasanton, CA , 94566 and  Pacific Grove Unified School District, with its principal place of business 
located at 435 Hillcrest Ave.Pacific Grove, CA 93950 and shall be effective through May 28, 2021. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Provider is engaged in the business of providing personnel for the performance of certain 
healthcare related services, 

WHEREAS, Client wishes to retain Provider to provide personnel to Client in connection with the above 
mentioned services or services as set forth in Exhibit A (Statement of Work). 

NOW, THEREFORE, Provider and Client agree as follows: 

1.         Scope of Services 

            Provider will provide personnel (the "Supplied Personnel") to perform the work (the "Work") 
described in Exhibit A for Client in accordance with the completion times set forth therein. 

2.         Price and Payment Terms  

            Client agrees to cooperate with Provider's reasonable requests with respect to the availability of 
personnel and to pay Provider for the services of the Supplied Personnel as set forth in Exhibit A. 

3.         Relation of Parties 

            A.         The Supplied Personnel are employees of Provider or are subcontracted by the Provider, 
and Provider retains all responsibility related thereto, including but not limited to withholding and payment 
of any applicable local, state or federal taxes, and payment for Workers' Compensation protection. Provider 
will indemnify client against any claims made or brought by personnel, government or taxing authority 
relating to such payments or withholdings. 

            B.         The performance by Provider of its duties and obligations under this Agreement will be that 
of an independent contractor, and nothing herein shall create or imply an agency relationship between 
Provider and Client, nor will this Agreement be deemed to constitute a joint venture or partnership between 
the parties. Supplied Personnel will work under the direct supervision and direction of the Client. 

 

CONSENT I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 32



 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
7041 Koll Center Parkway, Ste.210       
Pleasanton, CA 94566       
Phone: +1 855 828 3200       

www.BMRhealth.com 
 
 

 

4.         Term and Termination 

            Unless terminated as provided herein, this Agreement will extend to and terminate upon completion 
of the Work as provided herein. Client may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days 
written notice. In the event of termination without cause, Client agrees to pay Provider for all of the Work 
performed up to the date of termination. Either party may terminate this agreement for material breach, 
provided, however, that the terminating party has given the other party at least thirty (30) days written 
notice of and the opportunity to cure the breach. Termination for breach will not preclude the terminating 
party from exercising any other remedies for breach. 

5.         Ownership of Intellectual Property 

            To the extent that Provider has received payment of compensation as provided in this Agreement, 
any work of authorship created in conjunction with the Work will be deemed a "commissioned work" and 
"work made for hire" to the greatest extent permitted by law and Client will be the sole owner of the Work 
and/or any works derived there from. To the extent that the Work is not properly characterized as "work 
made for hire," then Provider hereby irrevocably assigns to Client all right, title and interest in and to the 
Work (including but not limited to the copyright therein), and any and all ideas and information embodied 
therein, in perpetuity and throughout the world. 

6.         Confidential Information 

            A.         Provider warrants that it has obligated the Supplied Personnel to abide by the terms of this 
Agreement related to the nondisclosure of confidential information. All information relating to Client that 
is known to be confidential or proprietary, or which is clearly marked as such, will be held in confidence 
by Provider and will not be disclosed or used by Provider except to the extent that such disclosure or use is 
reasonably necessary to the performance of the Work. 

            B.         All information relating to Client that is known to be confidential or proprietary, or which 
is clearly marked as such, shall be held in confidence by Provider and will not be disclosed or used by 
Provider except to the extent that such disclosure or use is reasonably necessary to the performance of 
Provider's duties and obligations under this Agreement. 

            C.         These obligations of confidentiality will extend for a period of 12 months after the 
termination of this agreement, but will not apply with respect to information that is independently developed 
by the parties, lawfully becomes a part of the public domain, or of which the parties gained knowledge or 
possession free of any confidentiality obligation. 

7.         Warranty and Disclaimer 

            Provider warrants that the Work will be provided in a workmanlike manner, and in conformity with 
generally prevailing industry standards. This warranty is exclusive and is in lieu of all other warranties, 
whether express or implied, including any warranties of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose 

CONSENT I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 33



 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
7041 Koll Center Parkway, Ste.210       
Pleasanton, CA 94566       
Phone: +1 855 828 3200       

www.BMRhealth.com 
 
 

 

and any oral or written representations, proposals or statements made on or prior to the effective date of 
this agreement. 

8.         Limitation of Remedies 

            Client's sole and exclusive remedy for any claim against Provider with respect to the quality of the 
Work will be the correction by Provider of any material defects or deficiencies therein, of which Client 
notifies Provider in writing within ninety (90) days after the completion of that portion of Provider's Work. 
In the absence of any such notice, the Work will be deemed satisfactory to and accepted by Client. 

9.         Limitation of Liability 

            In no event will Client be liable for any loss of profit or revenue by Provider, or for any other 
consequential, incidental, indirect or economic damages incurred or suffered by Provider arising as a result 
of or related to the Work, whether in contract, tort or otherwise, even if Provider has advised of the 
possibility of such loss or damages. Provider further agrees that the total liability of Client for all claims of 
any kind arising as a result of or related to this Agreement, or to any act or omission of Provider, whether 
in contract, tort or otherwise, will not exceed an amount equal to the amount actually paid by Client to 
Provider for the Work during the twelve (12) month period preceding the date the claim arises. Provider 
will indemnify and hold Client harmless against any claims by third parties, including all costs, expenses 
and attorneys' fees incurred by Client therein, arising out of or in conjunction with Provider’s performance 
under or breach of this Agreement. 

10.       Insurance Requirements 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance, including both bodily injury and property damage, 
with limits as follows:  
                         
$2,000,000 per occurrence 
$   500,000 fire damage 
$       5,000 medical expenses 
$1,000,000 personal & adv. Injury 
$3,000,000 general aggregate 
$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate 
 
The policy may not contain an exclusion for coverage of claims arising from claims for sexual 
molestation or abuse.  In the event that CONTRACTOR’s policy should have an exclusion for 
sexual molestation or abuse claims, then CONTRACTOR shall be required to procure a 
supplemental policy providing such coverage. 

 
B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor 

Code adequate to protect the RTC from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to 
the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage).  The Workers’ Compensation Insurance 

CONSENT I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 34



 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
7041 Koll Center Parkway, Ste.210       
Pleasanton, CA 94566       
Phone: +1 855 828 3200       

www.BMRhealth.com 
 
 

 

coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of 
$1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000.   

 
C. Commercial Auto Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with 

a $1 million combined single limit.  If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned 
is required. 

 
If CONTRACTOR uses a vehicle to travel to/from school sites, between schools and/or to/from 
students’ homes or other locations as approved service locations by the LEA, CONTRACTOR 
must comply with State of California auto insurance requirements. 

 
D. Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) coverage, 

  including Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage is 
  afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability policy by 
  endorsement or separate policy, with the following limits: 

 
                            $1,000,000 per occurrence 

                      $2,000,000 general aggregate 

11.       Solicitation/Hiring 

            During the period of this agreement and for Twelve (12) months thereafter, neither party shall 
directly or indirectly solicit or offer employment to or hire any employee, former employee, subcontractor 
or former subcontractor of the other. The terms "former employee" and "former subcontractor" shall include 
only those employees or subcontractors of either party who were employed or utilized by that party on the 
Effective Date of this Agreement. 

12.  Non Compete 

 During the period of this agreement and for Twelve (12) months thereafter, Client agrees not to 
contract either directly or indirectly with the employee or the subcontractor who provided services through 
the provider at the Facility of the Client. 

13.       Non-assignment 

            Neither party may assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of 
the other party. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the parties hereto, 
together with their respective legal representatives, successors and assigns, as permitted herein. 

  

CONSENT I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 35



 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
7041 Koll Center Parkway, Ste.210       
Pleasanton, CA 94566       
Phone: +1 855 828 3200       

www.BMRhealth.com 
 
 

 

14.       Attorneys' Fees 

            The parties agree that if any of them ever have to begin or defend legal or other proceedings to 
enforce or interpret the terms of this Master Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover 
any litigation expenses, including, without limitation, reasonable attorney’s fees and costs. 

15.       Severability 

            If any term of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable or contrary to law, it shall be modified 
to the least extent necessary to make it enforceable, and the remaining portions of this Agreement will 
remain in full force and effect. 

16.       Force Majeure 

            Either party will be held responsible for any delay or failure in performance of any part of this 
Agreement to the extent such delay is caused by events or circumstances beyond the delayed party's 
reasonable control. 

17.       No Waiver 

            The waiver by any party of any breach of covenant will not be construed to be a waiver of any 
succeeding breach or any other covenant. All waivers must be in writing, and signed by the party waiving 
its rights. This Agreement may be modified only by a written instrument executed by authorized 
representatives of the parties hereto. 

18.       Entire Agreement 

            This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject 
matter hereof, and supersedes all prior agreements, proposals, negotiations, representations or 
communications relating to the subject matter. Both parties acknowledge that they have not been induced 
to enter into this Agreement by any representations or promises not specifically stated herein. 

  

CONSENT I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 36



 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
7041 Koll Center Parkway, Ste.210       
Pleasanton, CA 94566       
Phone: +1 855 828 3200       

www.BMRhealth.com 
 
 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date first set forth above. 

 

Provider: BMR Health Services Inc 

                

 Client:  Pacific Grove Unified School 

 

By: __________________________________ 

Name & Title: Jicky Thomas, CEO 

 

By:_______________________________ 

 

  

 

EXHIBIT A: STATEMENT OF WORK 

1.0       Statement of Work 

Provider agrees to provide a California State licensed providing Speech Language Pathologists, 
Occupational & Physical Therapists, School Psychologists and Special Education Teachers to 
client as requested by client. Any SLPs, OTs, PTs, School Psychologists or Special Education 
Teachers provided will hold and maintain appropriate registration and licensure to practice in the 
state of California. Evidence of registration and licensure will be provided to client by provided 
upon commencement of therapist’s services.   

Providers SLPs, OTs, PTs & CFYs will provide therapy services in compliance with applicable 
state and federal regulations and in accordance with client's policies, procedures, rules and 
regulations. Client will inform provider and the SLPs, OTs, PTs, CFYs, School Psychologists and 
Special Education Teachers of client’s policies, procedures, rules and regulations. 

Client shall notify provider immediately of any SLPs, OTs, PTs, CFYs, School Psychologists and 
Special Education Teachers failure to comply with any state or federal regulations or of client's 
appropriate policies, procedures, rules and regulations. 

SLPs, OTs, PTs, CFYs, School Psychologists and Special Education Teachers shall have access to 
any records necessary to provide services required herein accordance with all applicable federal, 
state and local statutes, rules and regulations, as well as under HIPPA regulations and client's 
policies, procedures, rules and regulations 

CONSENT I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 37



 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
7041 Koll Center Parkway, Ste.210       
Pleasanton, CA 94566       
Phone: +1 855 828 3200       

www.BMRhealth.com 
 
 

 

2.0 Compensation   
 
As full compensation for the Services rendered pursuant to this Agreement, the Client will pay 
Provider at the hourly rate as follows for the services of: 

 SLP-CCC     $700.00 per day 

Payment Terms 
 
Invoices will be submitted on a monthly basis by the Provider and the Client agrees to make the payment 
on the same in full within 30 days from the date of receipt of such invoice. All payments should be mailed 
to BMR Health Services Inc, 7041 Koll Center Parkway, Ste # 210, Pleasanton, CA - 94566. A 
finance charge of 1.5% per month on the unpaid amount of an invoice, or the maximum amount allowed 
by law, will be charged on past due accounts.  Payments by Client will thereafter be applied first to 
accrued interest and then to the principal unpaid balance.  Any attorney fees, court costs, or other costs 
incurred in collection of delinquent accounts shall be paid by Client.  If payment of invoices is not 
current, the provider may suspend performing further work. 

Provider: BMR Health Services Inc 

 

 

Client: Pacific Grove Unified School 

 

 

 By: _____________________________ 

Name &  Title: Jicky Thomas, CEO 

By: ____________________________ 
 

 

*The Per Diem and Hourly Rates for therapists will be increased by 3 % percent annually to incorporate a 
cost of living adjustment (COLA).  The COLA increase will take effect each year on the anniversary of 
the Effective Date of the Agreement.  

CONSENT I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 38



  

☒Consent  

☐Action/Discussion 

☐Information/Discussion 

☐Public Hearing 

 

SUBJECT: Contract for Services with Graide Network 

 

DATE:  December 10, 2020 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Sean Roach, Pacific Grove Middle School Principal 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The District Administration recommends the Board review and approve the contract for services with 

Graide Network at Pacific Grove Middle School for grading and feedback services for English Language 

Arts Department. 

  

BACKGROUND: 

 

Pacific Grove Middle School English Language Arts teachers want to give their students high quality 

feedback on their writing.  This takes significant time and effort, and therefore delays the feedback loop.  

Students typically wait one to tow weeks to receive feedback on formal writing assignments (essays).  

Graide Network is a resource that allows teachers to upload essays to receive feedback from trained 

readers within a few days, thus accelerating the feedback cycle and allowing students to identify and 

correct their mistakes more quickly.  The feedback provided by Graide Network also provides a model of 

high quality feedback that teachers can use as a basis for their own practice, and as the basis for 

calibration of their analysis of student writing across the department.  Teachers using Graide Network still 

provide feedback and grade the papers, but they get help with the feedback process on initial drafts of the 

essays.  The cost includes feedback on one writing assignment or essay for 455 students from all grade 

levels 6–8, between February, 2021 through May, 2021. 

 

INFORMATION: 

 

All Pacific Grove Middle School English Language Arts teachers will select one essay to send to Graide 

Network for quick and comprehensive feedback, using rubrics they provide.  Responding to feedback is a 

topic Pacific Grove High School teachers have indicated is an area of need for 9th grade students.  To that 

end, teachers will build lessons around the meaning of the feedback comments and how to use the 

feedback to improve the quality of their writing.  Summary reports (by student and/or class) provided by 

Graide Network will be used as the basis for future professional development in this area, as well as for 

teacher collaboration and data analysis at the middle school.  Final feedback and grades on submitted 

papers will be provided by the teachers, not by Graide Network.  Through use of Graide Network, middle 

school teachers hope to build their capacity to provide comprehensive, calibrated feedback consistently 

across all grade levels and classes. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Site Fund:  Professional Consulting Services for $1,365.00 

 

  

CONSENT J

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 39



CONSENT J

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 40



CONSENT J

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 41



 

  

☐Consent  

☐Information/Discussion 

☒Action/Discussion 

 

SUBJECT: Adoption of Board Policy 0470 COVID-19 Mitigation Plan 

 

DATE:  December 10, 2020 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The District Administration recommends that the Board review and adopt the new Board Policy 0470 

COVID-19 Mitigation Plan.  

 

INFORMATION: 

 

The Board reviewed Policy 0470 COVID-19 Mitigation Plan for a first reading on November 12, 2020 

and directed Administration to bring back as a final reading at the December 10, 2020 Board meeting. 

 

As part of the Re-Opening process due to COVID school closures the Pacific Grove Unified School 

District has several plans in place to mitigate student and staff exposure to the Coronavirus. The Board 

recognizes that students and staff have the right to a safe campus that protects their physical and 

psychological health and well-being. School campuses shall only be open when deemed safe for in-person 

instruction.  

 

The following policy establishes and confirms planned/approved actions that will be taken by the Pacific 

Grove Unified School District (PGUSD) to provide a safe learning and working environment during the 

coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, and shall supersede any conflicting language in existing PGUSD 

policies or administrative regulations until the Pacific Grove Board of Education (Board) determines that 

the need for this policy no longer exists. The Board acknowledges that, due to the evolving nature of the 

pandemic, federal, state, and local orders impacting district operations are subject to change without 

notice. In the event that any federal, state, or local order may conflict with this policy, the order shall 

govern. 

 

Areas Included (but not limited to) are: 

 

• Student Support 

• Instruction and Schedules 

• Grading 

• Health and Welfare of Returning Students 

• Student Absence and Attendance 

• Social Distance, Cleaning, Disinfecting, Contact Tracing 

• Food Services 

• Potential Reclosure 

  
 

 

ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 42



Pacific Grove Unified School District 

 
Mission and Goals       Board Policy #0470 

 
COVID-19 MITIGATION PLAN 

 

 

Page 1 of 12  Adopted: December 10, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD.   

The following policy establishes actions that will be taken by the Pacific Grove Unified School District 

(PGUSD) to provide a safe learning and working environment during the coronavirus (COVID-19) 

pandemic, and shall supersede any conflicting language in existing PGUSD policies or administrative 

regulations until the Pacific Grove Board of Education (Board) determines that the need for this policy 

no longer exists.  The Board acknowledges that, due to the evolving nature of the pandemic, federal, 

state, and local orders impacting district operations are subject to change without notice.  In the event 

that any federal, state, or local order may conflict with this policy, the order shall govern. 

 

(cf. 2210 - Administrative Discretion Regarding Board Policy) 

(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 

(cf. 9310 - Board Policies, Bylaws and Regulations) 

 

The Board may also adopt resolutions or take other actions as needed to respond to such orders or 

provide further direction during the pandemic. 

 

The Board recognizes that students and staff have the right to a safe campus that protects their physical 

and psychological health and well-being.  School campuses shall only be open when deemed safe for 

in-person instruction.  The Board's decision, with the advice of the Monterey County Superintendent 

of Schools (County Superintendent), and the Pacific Grove Unified School District Superintendent, to 

reopen school campuses for classes, before or after school programs, child care centers, and/or 

preschool programs shall be made in consultation with state and local health officials, and neighboring 

school districts.  PGUSD shall evaluate its capacity to implement safety precautions and to conduct full 

or partial school operations, and shall consider student, parent/guardian, and community input. 

 

(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 

(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan) 

 

Prior to the return to on-campus teaching and learning, the PGUSD Superintendent or designee should 

provide current information to students, parents/guardians, and staff about COVID-19, including its 

symptoms, how it is transmitted, how to prevent transmission, the current recommendations from the 

state and local departments of public health, and any other information and/or resources to prepare for 

a safe return to on-campus teaching and learning. The PGUSD Superintendent or designee should also 

provide information on the processes and protocols the PGUSD will follow to minimize the health risks 

associated with COVID-19, including, but not limited to, physically separating individuals (social 

distancing), limits on large gatherings, the provision of personal protective equipment (PPE) such as 

masks and gloves, and the sanitization of facilities. 

 

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 

 

Student Support 

 

The Board recognizes that the consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic, including fear for one's 

safety, the economic crisis, the loss of school-based relationships, and disruptions in student learning, 

ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 43



Pacific Grove Unified School District 

 
Mission and Goals       Board Policy #0470 

 
COVID-19 MITIGATION PLAN 

 

 

Page 2 of 12  Adopted: December 10, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD.   

impact all students but may have a disproportionate effect on the youngest students, students with 

disabilities, those students most vulnerable to basic needs insecurity or child abuse and neglect, and 

other at-risk students. 

 

As school campuses reopen, the Board would expect the staff to provide a caring and nurturing 

educational environment for students. PGUSD may also provide instruction on social-emotional well-

being to all students, including information on how to deal with stress and anxiety in healthy ways and 

the importance of emotional well-being for academic success. 

 

(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 

 

The staff should also pay careful attention to students' increased mental health concerns.  Counseling, 

other support services, and/or referrals to other agencies shall be available to assist students in dealing 

with the social and emotional effects of COVID-19, such as stress, anxiety, depression, grief, social 

isolation, and post-traumatic stress disorder. 

 

(cf. 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention) 

(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 

 

As needed, the staff may see the need to provide referrals of students and families to basic needs 

assistance or social services, and may assess students for eligibility for the free and reduced-price meal 

program or assistance under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act.  

 

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 

 

The PGUSD Superintendent or designee should ensure that the staff understands its obligations as 

mandated reporters to report suspected child abuse or neglect, regardless of whether the student is on 

campus or participating in distance learning. 

 

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 

 

The PGUSD Superintendent or designee is encouraged to provide information to staff and 

parents/guardians regarding how to provide mental health support to students. The PGUSD 

Superintendent or designee should consider providing counseling resources to staff who are 

experiencing emotional difficulties as a result of COVID-19. 

 

Instruction/Schedules 

 

PGUSD may consider offering a combination of on-campus instruction and distance learning to meet 

the needs of all students. 

 

(cf. 6158 - Independent Study) 

 

The PGUSD Superintendent and District Office administrative staff will work with school principals, 

teachers, other staff, students, and parents/guardians to establish schedules of on-campus instruction 

for each school and program.  If all students cannot attend on-campus instruction for the entire school 

ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 44



Pacific Grove Unified School District 

 
Mission and Goals       Board Policy #0470 

 
COVID-19 MITIGATION PLAN 

 

 

Page 3 of 12  Adopted: December 10, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD.   

day due to space limitations as a result of social distancing requirements, the Superintendent or designee 

may consider arrangements for rotating groups of students, such as on a daily or weekly basis, and/or 

shall provide on-campus instruction to students with the greatest need for in-person supervision. 

 

(cf. 6112 - School Day) 

 

Priority for on-campus instruction shall be given to the lowest performing students, students with 

disabilities, elementary level students, students at risk of child abuse and neglect, homeless students, 

foster youth, and English learners. To the extent practicable,      PGUSD shall also consider the needs 

of essential workers, as designated in the Governor's executive orders, for child care during normal 

school hours. 

 

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 

 

On-campus instruction may be prioritized for subjects that are difficult to deliver through distance 

learning, such as laboratory science, art, or career technical education. 

 

For distance learning, lessons may be delivered through live video sessions, pre-recorded lectures, or 

other technology-based distance learning platforms and/or the district may supplement on-campus 

instruction with home assignments.  As much as possible, distance learning shall be provided through 

small-group synchronous learning. 

 

Appropriate training shall be offered to teachers and other instructional staff involved in distance 

learning, including training on how to use any technology or platform approved for distance learning 

by the school and opportunities for the sharing of best practices among instructional staff. Available 

training resources may also be provided to students and parents/guardians when necessary. 

 

Evaluation of Academic Progress Following Campus Closure 

 

Upon return to on-campus instruction following an extended campus closure, the teachers should 

evaluate the impact of the campus closure on students' academic progress.  Such evaluation may: 

1. Address student-specific needs arising from the transition back into on-campus instruction 

2. Consider whether or not a student has experienced a regression of skills and/or lack of progress 

3. If regression and/or a lack of progress is present, identify opportunities for recovery, including 

supplemental educational services and/or new or different support services. 

 

 (cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 

 

For students with disabilities, the evaluation of academic progress shall also be used to determine 

whether an additional or revised individualized education program (IEP) or Section 504 plan is needed 

for the student to be academically successful when returning to on-campus instruction. The Director of 

Student Services and of Special Education may prioritize urgent student need in scheduling initial and 

triennial assessments and annual IEP meetings. The Director of Special Education should ensure 

PGUSD compliance with all procedural timelines for IEPs and Section 504 plans as required, unless 

amended by executive order. 

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 

ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 45



Pacific Grove Unified School District 

 
Mission and Goals       Board Policy #0470 

 
COVID-19 MITIGATION PLAN 

 

 

Page 4 of 12  Adopted: December 10, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD.   

(cf. 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education) 

(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 

 

Grading 

 

For each grading period, student progress shall be reported in accordance with BP/AR 5121 - 

Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement.  However, in the event that school campuses are closed 

for an extended period of time during any grading period, the Board may, upon recommendation by the 

PGUSD Superintendent or designee, adopt one or more alternative grading policies which may vary by 

grade level or type of course.  Options for such grading include, but are not limited to:   

1. Assignment of final grades based on the student's grades when the campus shutdown occurred, 

with opportunities to increase the final grade based on progress through distance learning or 

other assignments and assessments 

2. Assignment of pass/no pass grades for all courses 

3. Grading based on students' understanding of applicable course content through assessments, 

projects, portfolios, or other appropriate means. 

 

 (cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 

 

Health Screening of Students 

 

To the extent feasible, students shall be screened for COVID-19 symptoms before boarding a school 

bus and/or upon arrival at school each day. The Superintendent or designee should work with local 

health officials to determine the appropriate means of screening, which may include temperature checks 

with a no-touch thermometer. 

 

If the screening indicates a fever or other COVID-19 symptoms, or if the student exhibits symptoms at 

any time during the school day, the student shall be placed in a supervised isolation area until the 

student's parent/guardian is contacted and the student can be transported home or to a healthcare facility. 

School staff may provide the parent/guardian with referrals to school or community health centers for 

further testing. 

 

(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 

 

Student Absence and Attendance 

 

The Board recognizes that COVID-19 will continue to impact the attendance of students following the 

reopening of school campuses. The Superintendent or designee will be expected to notify students and 

parents/guardians of expectations regarding school attendance.  Such notification shall direct any 

student who contracts the virus or lives with someone who has been diagnosed with COVID-19 to stay 

home in accordance with state and local health directives so as to curtail the spread of the disease. 

 

Students who are infected with COVID-19 shall be excluded from on-campus instruction until a 

medical provider states in writing that the student is no longer contagious.  [Education Code (EC) 

49451; Health and Safety Code 120230; 5 California Code of Regulations (CCR) 202] 

 

ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 46



Pacific Grove Unified School District 

 
Mission and Goals       Board Policy #0470 

 
COVID-19 MITIGATION PLAN 

 

 

Page 5 of 12  Adopted: December 10, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD.   

Students who are identified as being in a high-risk population for serious complications from COVID-

19 because of a medical condition may request assessment and accommodations under Section 504 

and/or an alternative instructional method that allows the student to continue receiving instruction off 

campus. 

 

Pursuant to EC 48205, student absences due to illness or quarantine are considered excused absences. 

5 CCR 306 authorizes the school to require a satisfactory explanation from a student's parent/guardian 

whenever the student is absent. Pursuant to 5 CCR 421, the Board may adopt policy or a resolution 

establishing reasonable methods for verifying student absences, and absences due to illness or 

quarantine may be verified by a school or public health nurse, Attendance Coordinator, physician, 

principal, teacher, or other qualified PGUSD employee assigned to make such verification. See AR 

5113 - Absences and Excuses for verification methods authorized by the PGUSD. 

 

When a student is absent, the student's parent/guardian shall notify the school of the reason for the 

absence.  A physician's verification of a student's illness or quarantine may be submitted, but is not 

required. 

 

(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 

 

If a student would otherwise be required to attend on-campus instruction but is kept home by the 

parents/guardians due to concerns for the welfare of their child, the principal or designee shall work 

with the student and parent/guardian to find alternative means of instruction, which may include 

distance or blended learning, independent study, printed class assignments, or other reasonable means. 

 

(cf. 6154 - Homework/Makeup Work) 

 

Pursuant to the Governor's Executive Order N-26-20, county offices are not penalized for failure to 

offer regular school days when campuses are closed due to COVID-19.  Although PGUSD is not 

required to record daily attendance for apportionment purposes when campuses are closed, California 

Department of Education’s (CDE) FAQs for 2019 Novel Coronavirus encourage PGUSD to track 

participation and engagement in distance learning at such times.  As campuses reopen, PGUSD will 

follow state guidance, when issued, pertaining to attendance accounting. 

 

The Director of Curriculum/Special Projects and the Assistant Superintendent Business Services are 

required to maintain enrollment and student attendance data, including the participation of students in 

distance learning, and shall report data in accordance with state requirements. 

 

The PGUSD employee designated as the Attendance Coordinator pursuant to EC 48240 shall track 

patterns of student absence throughout the district and regularly report such information to the 

Superintendent. When a student who is participating in distance learning repeatedly fails to check in 

with the teacher when required, the teacher and/or Attendance Coordinator shall attempt to contact the 

student or parent/guardian to resolve the issues leading to the absence. 

 

(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 

(cf. 5113.11 - Attendance Supervision) 

ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 47



Pacific Grove Unified School District 

 
Mission and Goals       Board Policy #0470 

 
COVID-19 MITIGATION PLAN 

 

 

Page 6 of 12  Adopted: December 10, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD.   

Social Distancing 

 

Public health officials from the California Department of Public Health (CDPH), CDC, and World 

Health Organization (WHO) recommend social distancing to help stop or slow the spread of COVID-

19.  Social distancing requires creating physical space between individuals and minimizing the size and 

number of gatherings as much as possible.  It is generally recommended that space between individuals 

be at least six feet whenever possible. 

 

In order to maintain a campus environment that allows for social distancing, the      PGUSD should 

assess the capacity of school facilities, including classrooms, cafeterias, multi-purpose rooms, gyms, 

and outdoor areas, and determine the means by which the facilities can best be utilized considering 

space and time alternatives.  To the extent reasonably possible, the PGUSD may: 

1. Within classrooms, space desks at least six feet apart and position them in a way that limits 

students facing each other. 

2. Stagger students in areas of high traffic, such as when students are lining up for class, or passing 

between classes. 

3. Mark six-foot boundaries within classrooms, common areas, outdoor spaces, and places where 

students are likely to gather so that students and staff are more readily aware of and can more 

easily abide by social distancing requirements. 

4. Utilize restroom stalls and sinks in a manner that allows for social distancing, such as limiting 

the number of students and/or staff who may use the restroom at a time, blocking off every 

other stall or sink from use, and/or marking six-foot boundaries. 

5. Minimize the mixing of students from different classrooms in common spaces, such as in 

cafeterias and libraries. 

6. Conduct recess and physical education classes in a manner that allows for social distancing and 

minimizes the use of physical education equipment. 

7. Assess the capacity of school buses and develop a plan for bus routes and bus seating consistent 

with social distancing objectives.  Bus seating arrangements may be established to meet the 

six-foot social distancing objectives, such as (1) seating one student to a bench on both sides 

of the bus, skipping every other row, and (2) seating one student to a bench, alternating rows 

on each side to create a zigzag pattern. Seats that must be left vacant should be marked or 

blocked.   

 

 (cf. 3540 - Transportation) 

 (cf. 3543 - Transportation Safety and Emergencies) 

 

8. Encourage students to walk, bicycle, or travel by private vehicle to reduce the number of 

students traveling on school buses. Schools may provide designated areas with proper 

distancing for bicycles to be stored during the school day, and may mark spaces for private 

vehicle drop-off and pick-up zones. 

 

 (cf. 5142.2 - Safe Routes to School Program) 

 

Large gatherings, such as assemblies, rallies, field trips, extracurricular activities, and athletic events, 

shall be suspended until guidance from state and local health officials indicate that it is safe to resume 

such activities.  The Superintendent or designee may grant an exception if an activity can be arranged 

ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 48



Pacific Grove Unified School District 

 
Mission and Goals       Board Policy #0470 

 
COVID-19 MITIGATION PLAN 

 

 

Page 7 of 12  Adopted: December 10, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD.   

to take place in phases or per class, or modified in a manner that would keep participants from violating 

social distancing recommendations.  When deciding whether an activity may resume, the 

Superintendent or designee may consider the size of the group that participates, the extent to which the 

students and other attendees have physical contact, whether the activity can be modified to avoid 

physical contact, if shared equipment is required for the activity, and if social distancing can be 

maintained. 

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 

(cf. 6153 - School-Sponsored Trips) 

 

Personal Protective Equipment and Hygiene Practices 

 

The Board encourages students, staff, and visitors to wear PPE while on school campuses or school 

buses, especially in high-traffic areas and/or when social distancing is not possible.  If the use of PPE 

in schools is required by state or local health officials, the PGUSD should provide PPE to students and 

staff who do not bring their own personal PPE.  Students and staff shall be provided instruction in the 

proper use, removal, disposal, and cleaning of PPE. 

 

Face coverings shall not be required for anyone who has trouble breathing or is incapacitated or 

otherwise unable to remove the covering without assistance.  Reasonable accommodations shall be 

made for anyone who is unable to wear a face covering for medical reasons. 

 

The Board also encourages students and staff to practice good hygiene, such as appropriate covering of 

coughs and sneezes and regular hand washing of at least 20 seconds, including before eating and after 

blowing one's nose, coughing, or sneezing.  The PGUSD should provide adequate time and opportunity 

for students to wash hands, and shall make hand sanitizer available in areas where handwashing is less 

accessible. Signage regarding healthy hygiene practices and how to stop the spread of COVID-19 may 

be posted in and around school facilities. 

 

Sanitization of Facilities and Equipment 

 

School facilities, school buses, and shared equipment such as desks, tables, sports/playground 

equipment, computers, door handles, light switches, and other frequently used equipment and supplies 

shall be cleaned and disinfected daily with appropriate cleaning agents. Disinfectants and cleaning 

agents shall be stored properly and in a manner not accessible to students. 

 

(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations)  

(cf. 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances)  

(cf. 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety) 

 

The Superintendent or designee should ensure that ventilation systems are operating properly and that 

air flow and ventilation within PGUSD facilities are increased, to the extent possible, by opening 

windows and doors and using fans and air conditioning. Garbage shall be removed daily and disposed 

of safely. 

 

 

ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 49



Pacific Grove Unified School District 

 
Mission and Goals       Board Policy #0470 

 
COVID-19 MITIGATION PLAN 

 

 

Page 8 of 12  Adopted: December 10, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD.   

Food Services 

 

The PGUSD School Nutrition Director should ensure that students have access to clean drinking water 

other than through a drinking fountain, and food which is procured, stored, and served in a manner that 

reduces the likelihood of COVID-19 transmission and follows state and national guidelines for 

nutrition. 

 

(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 

 

For meals that are consumed on school grounds, the PGUSD School Nutrition Director should ensure 

that students will be able to maintain proper social distancing while eating. In order to do so, the 

PGUSD Superintendent or designee may consider the consumption of meals in classrooms, gyms, the 

outdoors, and/or other district grounds. 

 

Meal service shall also be available to students participating in distance learning, which may include 

and/or entirely consist of a "grab and go" service or delivery. 

 

Due to the changing financial circumstances of many families as a result of COVID-19, the PGUSD 

School Nutrition Director is expected to regularly provide information to students and 

parents/guardians regarding the free and reduced-price meal program, eligibility, and how to apply for 

the program. 

 

(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 

 

Staff 

 

Prior to reopening campuses, the PGUSD Superintendent and Director of Human Resources should 

review staff assignments and, upon request, may reassign employees to reduce exposure to the virus, 

especially for high-risk staff. When feasible for the position, employees may be granted a remote work 

assignment. 

 

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 

(cf. 4113.4/4213.4/4313.4 - Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment)  

 

In the event that employees are unable to perform their duties due to partial or full closure of campuses, 

the employees shall be compensated as permitted by law. 

 

Any employee who contracts the virus, shows symptoms of possible infection, or is caring for someone 

who has been diagnosed with the virus shall self-quarantine for the period of time recommended by 

health authorities in order to prevent the spread of the disease to students or other staff. 

 

An employee may use personal illness and injury leave and/or family care and medical leave, as 

applicable, if the employee is unable to work or telework because the employee is ill or needs to take 

care of a spouse, parent/guardian, or child with COVID-19 or other serious health condition.  [EC 

44978, 45191; Government Code (GC) 12945.1-12945.2; Labor Code 245-249; 29 United States Code 

(USC) 2601-2654] 

ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 50



Pacific Grove Unified School District 

 
Mission and Goals       Board Policy #0470 

 
COVID-19 MITIGATION PLAN 

 

 

Page 9 of 12  Adopted: December 10, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD.   

 

(cf. 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave) 

(cf. 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave) 

 

Until December 31, 2020, an eligible employee may take paid sick leave for up to 80 hours, or the 

number of hours that a part-time employee works on average over a two-week period, if the employee 

is unable to work or telework because the employee is: [29 USC 2601] 

1. Subject to a federal, state, or local quarantine or isolation order related to COVID-19 

2. Advised by a health care provider to self-quarantine due to concerns related to COVID-19 

3. Experiencing symptoms of COVID-19 and seeking a medical diagnosis 

4. Caring for an individual who is subject to a federal, state, or local quarantine or isolation order 

or has been advised by a health care provider to self-quarantine  

5. Caring for the employee's child whose school or child care provider is closed or unavailable 

for reasons related to COVID-19 

6. Experiencing any other substantially similar condition specified by the U.S. Department of 

Health and Human Services. 

 

Employees are eligible to be paid their regular rate of pay for leave taken pursuant to items #1-3 above, 

or two-thirds their regular rate of pay for leave taken pursuant to items #4-6 above, within the limits 

specified in law.  [29 USC 2601] 

 

For the purpose specified in item #5 above, eligible employees who have been employed by the PGUSD 

for at least 30 calendar days shall be granted extended leave for up to 12 work weeks upon request.  

The first 10 days of such leave shall be unpaid unless the employee uses accrued vacation leave, 

personal leave, sick leave, or paid sick leave granted pursuant to 29 USC 2601.  After the first 10 days, 

the      PGUSD shall pay not less than two-thirds of the employee's regular pay for the number of hours 

per week the employee normally works, with a maximum of $200 per day and $10,000 for the total 

period.  Eligibility for extended leave for this purpose is subject to the employee's eligibility for leave 

pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA).  [29 USC 2601, 2620] 

 

The PGUSD is required to post, in conspicuous places where employee notices are customarily posted, 

a notice prepared by the U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) regarding the requirements of 29 USC 2601 

and 2620.  [29 USC 2601]  

 

Follow-Up with Infected Persons/Contact Tracing 

 

The PGUSD Superintendent or designee shall work with county health officials to track confirmed 

cases of students and staff with COVID-19, including, but not limited to, following up with students, 

their parents/guardians, and staff who exhibit symptoms while at school and those who report an 

absence or miss work due to illness.  The PGUSD Superintendent or designee shall report confirmed 

cases to local health authorities. 

 

If a student, family member of a student, or staff member has tested positive for COVID-19, the district 

shall assist local health officials in conducting contact-tracing to identify potentially exposed 

individuals and ask them to self-quarantine, which may include not participating in on-campus 

instruction. While maintaining the privacy of the infected person, the district shall inform other students 

ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 51



Pacific Grove Unified School District 

 
Mission and Goals       Board Policy #0470 

 
COVID-19 MITIGATION PLAN 

 

 

Page 10 of 12  Adopted: December 10, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD.   

and staff with whom the infected person may have had contact in school. 

 

Nondiscrimination 

 

The Board prohibits discrimination based on actual or perceived medical condition or disability status.  

[GC 11135] 

 

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

 

Individual students and staff shall not be identified as being COVID-positive, nor shall students be 

shamed, treated differently, or denied access to a free and appropriate public education because of their 

COVID-19 status or medical condition. Staff should be informed not to disclose confidential or 

privileged information, including the medical history or health information of students and staff.  [EC 

49450] 

 

The Director Human Resources should investigate any reports of harassment, intimidation, and bullying 

targeted at any student based on COVID status, exposure, or high-risk status. 

 

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

 

Community Relations 

 

The PGUSD Superintendent or designee is encouraged to use a variety of methods to regularly 

communicate with students, parents/guardians, and the community regarding      PGUSD operations, 

school schedules, and steps the      PGUSD is taking to promote the health and safety of students. In 

addition, the members of the Board have a responsibility as community leaders to communicate matters 

of public interest in a manner that is consistent with Board policies and bylaws regarding public 

statements. 

 

(cf. 1100 - Communication with the Public) 

(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 

(cf. 9010 - Public Statements) 

 

The PGUSD should continue to collaborate with local health officials and agencies, community 

organizations, and other stakeholders to ensure that PGUSD operations reflect current 

recommendations and best practices for keeping students, staff, and visitors safe during the COVID-19 

state of emergency. The PGUSD Superintendent or designee should keep informed about resources and 

services available in the community to assist students and families in need. 

 

While the Board recognizes the rights of parents/guardians to participate in the education of their 

children and the critical importance of parental involvement in the educational process, all visitors and 

volunteers are encouraged to respect guidelines regarding social distancing and large gatherings.  

School visitors and volunteers shall be limited in number and expected to observe all PGUSD protocols 

for COVID-19.  PGUSD Superintendent and Director of Facilities in coordination with school site 

principals may consider placing signage around the school advising that visitors and volunteers may be 

ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 52



Pacific Grove Unified School District 

 
Mission and Goals       Board Policy #0470 

 
COVID-19 MITIGATION PLAN 

 

 

Page 11 of 12  Adopted: December 10, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD.   

required to use PPE while on school sites and interacting with school personnel, and may keep a supply 

of such equipment available for their use. 

 

(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 

(cf. 1250 - Visitors/Outsiders) 

 

Use of school facilities by persons or organizations for community purposes involving large gatherings 

shall be suspended until the PGUSD Superintendent determines consistent with guidance from state 

and local health officials, that it is safe to resume such activities. The PGUSD Superintendent or 

designee may only grant an exception if the number of participants in the activity will be limited and 

the person or organization follows the processes and protocols established by the PGUSD to minimize 

the health risks associated with COVID-19. 

 

(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities) 

 

Potential Reclosure of Campus 

 

The PGUSD Superintendent or designee should monitor student and staff absences and data provided 

by local health officials to determine if there is a risk of resurgence of COVID-19 and a need to reclose 

school campuses for the protection of students, staff, and the community. The PGUSD Superintendent 

or designee should develop plans and procedures for alternative methods of operations to the extent 

possible in the event that reclosure becomes necessary. 

 

If any person diagnosed with COVID-19 is known to have been in a PGUSD building(s), the PGUSD 

Superintendent or designee should immediately notify local health officials to determine a course of 

action.  The building should be closed until cleaning and disinfecting of the building can be completed 

and the PGUSD can consult with local health officials to determine, based on up-to-date information 

about the specific cases in the community, whether an extended closure is needed to stop or slow further 

spread of COVID-19. 

 

If local health officials report that there has been no community transmission of COVID-19, or minimal 

to moderate transmission in the community, school campuses may not necessarily be closed, but the 

PGUSD should continue to take all preventative measures described in this policy. 

 

If local health officials report substantial community transmission of COVID-19, campus closures of 

more than two weeks may be necessary, and the Superintendent or designee should cancel group 

activities and events during that period.  Campuses shall not reopen until recommended by local health 

officials. 

 

 

Legal Reference: 

 

EDUCATION CODE 

44978 Sick leave for certificated employees 

45191 Leave of absence for illness and injury, classified employees 

48205 Excused absences 

ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 53



Pacific Grove Unified School District 

 
Mission and Goals       Board Policy #0470 

 
COVID-19 MITIGATION PLAN 

 

 

Page 12 of 12  Adopted: December 10, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD.   

48213 Prior parent notification of exclusion; exemption 

48240 Supervisors of attendance 

49451 Exemption from physical exam; exclusion from attendance 

 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

11135 Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state 

12945.1-12945.2 California Family Rights Act 

 

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 

120230 Exclusion from attendance 

 

LABOR CODE 

245-249 Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014 

 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 

11087-11098 California Family Rights Act 

 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

202 Exclusion from attendance 

306 Explanation of absence 

420-421 Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes 

 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 

2601-2654 Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended, especially: 

2601 Paid sick leave 

2620 Public health emergency leave 

 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

1760 National School Lunch program waivers addressing COVID-19 

 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 29 

825.100-825.702 Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 

 

 

 

           

ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 54



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 55



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 56



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 57



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 58



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 59



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 60



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 61



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 62



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 63



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 64



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 65



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 66



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 67



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 68



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 69



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 70



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 71



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 72



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 73



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 74



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 75



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 76



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 77



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 78



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 79



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 80



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 81



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 82



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 83



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 84



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 85



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 86



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 87



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 88



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 89



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 90



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 91



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 92



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 93



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 94



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 95



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 96



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 97



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 98



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 99



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 100



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 101



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 102



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 103



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 104



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 105



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 106



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 107



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 108



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 109



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 110



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 111



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 112



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 113



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 114



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 115



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 116



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 117



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 118



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 119



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 120



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 121



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 122



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 123



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 124



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 125



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 126



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 127



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 128



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 129



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 130



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 131



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 132



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 133



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 134



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 135



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 136



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 137



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 138



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 139



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 140



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 141



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 142



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 143



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 144



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 145



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 146



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 147



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 148



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 149



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 150



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 151



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 152



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 153



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 154



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 155



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 156



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 157



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 158



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 159



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 160



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 161



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 162



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 163



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 164



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 165



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 166



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 167



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 168



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 169



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 170



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 171



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 172



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 173



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 174



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 175



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 176



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 177



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 178



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 179



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 180



ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 181



  

☐Consent  

☒Action/Discussion 

☐Information/Discussion 

☐Public Hearing 

 

SUBJECT: Local Control Funding Formula Budget Overview for Parents 

 

DATE: December 10, 2020 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Ani Silva, Director of Curriculum and Special Projects 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

The District Administration recommends that the Board review and approve the 2020-2021 Local Control 

Funding Formula Budget Overview for Parents. 

 

BACKGROUND:  

California Education Code (EC) Section 52064.1 requires each school district to develop the Local 

Control Funding Formula (LCFF) Budget Overview for Parents in conjunction with the LCAP by July 1 

of each year. In 2020-2021 the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan replaced the LCAP. The 

Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan captured specific actions and expenditures to meet the needs of 

students and families during the pandemic in a distance learning environment and in person instruction 

prioritizing safety and learning. For 2020-2021, local governing boards are required to adopt and submit 

the Budget Overview for Parents on or before December 15, 2020, in conjunction with the District’s first 

interim budget report.  

 

INFORMATION:  

The Budget Overview for Parents contains the following information: 

● The total projected general fund revenue for the current school year as of the date of the first 

interim report, with the funds broken out as follows: 

○ The LCFF revenue 

○ The LCFF supplemental and concentration grants 

○ All other state funds 

○ All local funds 

○ All federal funds 

○ Federal CARES funds 

● Budgeted Expenditures: The totals for the 2020-21 school year for the following: 

○ Total budgeted general fund expenditures 

○ Total budgeted expenditures in the Learning Continuity Plan 

○ Total budgeted expenditures for high needs students in the Learning Continuity Plan 

(high needs students refers to: low-income, English learners, or foster youth) 

● Review of prior year expenditures in the 2019-2020 school year: 

○  Total budgeted expenditures for high needs students in the LCAP 

○ Actual expenditures for high needs students in the LCAP   

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None  

ACTION/DISCUSSION C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 182



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Pacific Grove Unified School District

CDS Code: 27-66134

School Year: 2020-2021

LEA contact information: Song Chin-Bendib

School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding 

Formula (LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of 

funding for all LEAs and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based 

on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students).

Budget Overview for the 2020-2021 School Year

This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Pacific Grove Unified School District expects to 

receive in the coming year from all sources.

The total revenue projected for Pacific Grove Unified School District is $37,490,317.00, of which 

$31,769,432.00 is Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) funds, $2,453,254.00 is other state funds, 

$1,708,342.00 is local funds, and $1,559,289.00 is federal funds. Of the $1,559,289.00 in federal funds, 

$885,870.00 are federal CARES Act funds. Of the $31,769,432.00 in LCFF Funds, $711,127.00 is 

generated based on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learner, and low-income 

students).

LCFF supplemental & 
concentration grants, 

$711,127 , 2%

All Other LCFF funds, 
$31,058,305 , 83%

All other state funds, 
$2,453,254 , 6%

All local funds, 
$1,708,342 , 5%

All Other Federal 
Funds, 

$673,419 , 2%

Federal 
CARES funds, 
$885,870 , 2%

Total LCFF Funds, 
$31,769,432 , 85%

Projected Revenue by Fund Source

 Page 1 of 3

ACTION/DISCUSSION C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 183



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

For the 2020-21 school year school districts must work with parents, educators, students, and the 

community to develop a Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan (Learning Continuity Plan). The 

Learning Continuity Plan replaces the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) for the 2020–21 

school year and provides school districts with the opportunity to desribe how they are planning to provide 

a high-quality education, social-emotional supports, and nutrition to their students during the COVID-19 

pandemic.

This chart provides a quick summary of how much Pacific Grove Unified School District plans to spend for 

planned actions and services in the Learning Continuity Plan for 2020-2021and how much of the total is 

tied to increasing or improving services for high needs students.

Pacific Grove Unified School District plans to spend $37,241,763.00 for the 2020-2021 school year. Of 

that amount, $1,133,361.00 is tied to actions/services in the Learning Continuity Plan and $36,108,402.00 

is not included in the Learning Continuity Plan. The budgeted expenditures that are not included in the 

Learning Continuity Plan will be used for the following: 

All District salaries & benefits, books & supplies, and contract services are some of the expenses not 

included in the Learning Continuity Plan. These expenditures include salaries & benefits for teachers, 

counselors, psychologists, classified support staff, and administrators.

Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in in the Learning Continuity 

Plan for the 2020-2021 School Year

In 2020-2021, Pacific Grove Unified School District is projecting it will receive $711,127.00 based on the 

enrollment of foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. Pacific Grove Unified School District 

must describe how it intends to increase or improve services for high needs students in the Learning 

Continuity Plan. Pacific Grove Unified School District plans to spend $1,133,361.00 towards meeting this 

requirement, as described in the Learning Continuity Plan.

Total Budgeted 
Expenditures in 

the Learning 
Continuity Plan

$1,133,361 

Total Budgeted 
Expenditures for 

High Needs 
Students in the 

Learning 
Continuity Plan, 

$1,133,361 

$ 0

$ 200,000

$ 400,000

$ 600,000

$ 800,000

$ 1,000,000

$ 1,200,000

Budgeted Expenditures in the Learning Continuity Plan

 Page 2 of 3

ACTION/DISCUSSION C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 184



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2019-2020

This chart compares what Pacific Grove Unified School District budgeted in the 2019-20 LCAP for actions 

and services that contributed to increasing or improving services for high needs students with what Pacific 

Grove Unified School District actually spent on actions and services that contributed to increasing or 

improving services for high needs students in the 2019-20 school year.

In 2019-2020, Pacific Grove Unified School District's LCAP budgeted $772,063.00 for planned actions to 

increase or improve services for high needs students. Pacific Grove Unified School District actually spent 

$1,322,251.00 for actions to increase or improve services for high needs students in 2019-2020.

$1,322,251 

$772,063 

$ 0 $ 200,000 $ 400,000 $ 600,000 $ 800,000 $ 1,000,000 $ 1,200,000 $ 1,400,000

Prior Year Expenditures: Increased or Improved Services for High Needs 
Students

Total Budgeted Expenditures for
High Needs Students in the LCAP

Actual Expenditures for High
Needs Students in LCAP

 Page 3 of 3

ACTION/DISCUSSION C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 185



☐Consent  

☒Action/Discussion 

☐Information/Discussion 

☐Public Hearing 

SUBJECT: Approval of Forest Grove Elementary School Site Hybrid Schedule 

 

DATE: December 10, 2020 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Buck Roggeman Forest Grove Elementary School Principal 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

The Administration recommends that the Board approve the Forest Grove Elementary School Overview 

for Reopening Plan as presented. The plan is based on State/County guidelines, as well as direction from 

the Board and committee members.  
 

BACKGROUND:  

This is a second draft of the reopening plans approved in July 2020 that recommends an AM/PM model 

be used instead of the AA/BB model suggested previously. Based on feedback from other schools using 

an AM/PM hybrid model, it is a better practice to have students on campus four days per week rather than 

two full days per week. It creates more of a routine during the pandemic, and allows for staff to see 

students on a regular basis. Distance Learning would remain the same with both programs providing an 

asynchronous Monday for teacher preparation. This hybrid model would be used if Monterey County 

enters the Red Tier.  
 

INFORMATION:  

After receiving results of the October 2020 Forest Grove Return to School Parent Survey, preliminary 

cohort numbers were established to determine how many students could be served in the AM or PM 

groups at each grade level:  

  
Transitional Kindergarten Blended Class 1 

 
DL Only 

13 
 

4  

Kindergarten Blended Class 1 Blended Class 2 DL Only 

18 (9/9) 17 (9/8) 21 

1st Grade Blended Class 1 Blended Class 2 DL Only 

23 (11/12) 22 (11/11) 15 

2nd Grade Blended Class 1 Blended Class 2 DL Only 

17 (9/8) 17 (9/8) 18 

3rd Grade  Blended Class 1 Blended Class 2 DL Only  

17 (9/8) 16 (8/8) 23 

4th Grade  Blended Class 1 Blended Class 2 Blended Class 3 DL Only  

14 (7/7) 14 (7/7) 13 (7/6) 30 

5th Grade  Blended Class 1 Blended Class 2 DL Only  
 

17 (9/8) 17 (9/8) 21 

FISCAL IMPACT:    

TBD if BASRP and Transportation programs return under a hybrid model.  

ACTION/DISCUSSION D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 186



 
 

Draft Forest Grove Reopening Overview 2020-2021 (Pending Board Approval) 
Introduction - This is an overview of the current plan at Forest Grove Elementary School. Specifics to each 
area will be provided prior to a district survey asking parents to decide between distance learning or blended 
learning. Every aspect of this plan follows state and county guidelines regarding physical distancing to keep all 
staff and students safe as we return to school. The plan also must be flexible enough to allow us to shift into a 
full distance learning program if we are ordered by county officials to do so. As the county guidelines change, 
our plan for reopening may be adjusted. We realize that this will not answer all of our community’s questions, 
so if you have questions or comments, please contact Principal Buck Roggeman by email at 
broggeman@pgusd.org. 
 
 
Two Programs Offered 

1. Full Distance Learning - Students who are medically compromised, per CA Senate Bill 98, and students 
choosing to remain in Distance Learning do not attend school and participate in distance learning every 
day 

2. Blended Learning Program - Students attend school four days each week in an AM or PM group and 
participate in asynchronous distance learning at home depending on their cohort time 

 
 
Full Distance Learning 

● Students do all learning from home 
● Daily live interaction with a teacher 
● All testing is done online 
● Instruction will be computer based, but also include traditional materials (paper, workbooks, 

manipulatives, etc.) distributed regularly 
● Distance Learning program developed by each grade level 
● Will have a combination of live instruction (synchronous) and recorded instruction (asynchronous) 
● Attendance and online engagement will be monitored 

 
  

FG Reopening Overview -11/19/2020 
Pending  Board Approval 

Page 1 

ACTION/DISCUSSION D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 187



Blended Learning Program 
Weekly Attendance for Live Instruction - Students attend school four days each week in AM or PM cohort. 
When not at school, students participate in asynchronous distance learning at home. Ongoing 
cleaning/disinfection will occur throughout each day along with nightly custodial services. Groups would be 
decided by alphabetical order and considerations will occur for paring siblings on site/at PGMS and with pods 
created in fall.  
 

 
 
 
Bell Schedule (Working Draft) - Staggered start and end times allow for smaller groups arriving and leaving 
campus. 

 
  

FG Reopening Overview -11/19/2020 
Pending  Board Approval 

Page 2 

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

Teacher Planning & 
DL 

AM Group 
(PM Asynchronous) 
 
PM Group 
(AM Asynchronous) 

AM Group 
(PM Asynchronous) 
 
PM Group 
(AM Asynchronous) 

AM Group 
(PM Asynchronous) 
 
PM Group 
(AM Asynchronous) 

AM Group 
(PM Asynchronous) 
 
PM Group 
(AM Asynchronous) 

Grade Cohort Group Start Time Dismissal 

 
Kindergarten  

AM Group 8:30  10:30 (120) 

PM Group 12:00 2:00 (120) 

 
1st & 2nd  

AM Group 8:30 11:00 (150) 

PM Group 12:30 3:00 (150) 

 
3rd, 4th, & 5th 

AM Group 8:45 11:15 (150) 

PM Group 12:45 3:15 (150) 

ACTION/DISCUSSION D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 188



 
Student Drop Off & Pick Up  

● Student temperatures will be taken but not recorded. Parents will be contacted for students with a fever 
of greater than 100.4 degrees. 

● Students will use a different campus entrance based on their classroom location. 
○ Front of School: Students whose classes are in B & C Wings 
○ Maintenance Gate off of Congress Ave: Students whose classes are in K & E Wings 
○ Back Gate by Playground Structure: Students whose classes are in G & D Wings 

● Parents will not be allowed to accompany students inside the gates. 
 

 
 

● Estimated number of students using each access point 
○ Front of School (B & C wings): AM - 36 students, PM - 23 students 
○ Congress Gate (K & E wings): AM 42 students, PM - 41 students 
○ Back Gate (G & D): AM 53 students, PM - 45  students  

 
  

FG Reopening Overview -11/19/2020 
Pending  Board Approval 

Page 3 

ACTION/DISCUSSION D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 189



Special Education Small Cohort Instruction 
● Our SDC/Inclusion students will be invited back to campus on Tuesdays and Thursdays in accordance 

with the California Department of Education guidelines allowing for small cohorts of special populations 
of students to return to live instruction. 

 

 
● When all students return to school, the SDC/Inclusion schedule will match that of their general 

education peers. 
 
BASRP 

● BASRP is to be determined as our elementary schools are analyzing the viability of establishing small 
cohorts that would not mix. 

 
Transportation - Detailed information will be available once physical distancing requirements on buses are 
made clear and accurate capacity can be determined. 
 
Personal Protective Equipment 

● Students - all students would be required to wear a mask according to county guidelines. Students who 
do not have a mask will have one provided by the school. 

● Staff - All staff will be required to wear a mask and have the option of wearing a plastic face shield as 
well. 

 
Physical Distancing 

● In Class - students will be seated six feet apart. Classes will have 10-14 students in them 
● Outside - students will remain in their class groups during recess and physical education. They will 

maintain six feet of distance in all situations where they line up. 
 
Recess 

● Students will wash their hands before and after recess 
● Classes will be given a specific area of the playground where they play for that day (play structure, 2-3 

groups on the field, 2-3 groups on level 2, and 2-3 groups on level 1) 
● We will follow all county and state guidelines regarding the sharing and disinfecting of equipment 

 
  

FG Reopening Overview -11/19/2020 
Pending  Board Approval 

Page 4 

Grade Cohort Group Start Time Dismissal 

Primary SDC/Inclusion AM Group Only 9:30 K-1st 10:30 
 2nd 11:30 

 
Intermediate 

SDC/Inclusion 

AM Group 8:45 11:30 

PM Group 12:30 3:15 

ACTION/DISCUSSION D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 190



Lunch - School lunches will be provided free of charge 
● AM Students will have the opportunity to grab and go lunches as they leave campus 
● PM students will eat lunch before they arrive at campus 

 
Restrooms 

● TK/K students will use the restroom in their classes 
● 1-5 students will use common restrooms with specific stalls assigned to each grade level 
● Two students will be allowed in at a time with adults monitoring during recess 
● One student per class may access restrooms at a time during class periods although they will not be monitored 

FG Reopening Overview -11/19/2020 
Pending  Board Approval 

Page 5 

ACTION/DISCUSSION D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 191



☐Consent  

☒Action/Discussion 

☐Information/Discussion 

☐Public Hearing 

SUBJECT: Approval of Robert Down Elementary School Site Hybrid Schedule 

 

DATE: December 10, 2020 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Sean Keller, Robert H. Down Elementary School Principal 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

The Administration recommends that the Board approve the Robert H. Down Elementary School 

Overview for Reopening Plan as presented. The plan is based on State/County guidelines, as well as 

direction from the Board and committee members.  
 

BACKGROUND:  

This is a second draft of the reopening plans approved in July 2020 that recommends an AM/PM model 

be used instead of the AA/BB model suggested previously. Based on feedback from other schools using 

an AM/PM hybrid model, it is a better practice to have students on campus four days per week rather than 

two full days per week. It creates more of a routine during the pandemic, and allows for staff to see 

students on a regular basis. Distance Learning would remain the same with both programs providing an 

asynchronous Monday for teacher preparation. This hybrid model would be used if Monterey County 

enters the Red Tier.  
 

INFORMATION:  

After receiving results of the October 2020 RHD Return to School Parent Survey, preliminary cohort 

numbers were established to determine how many students could be served in the AM or PM groups at 

each grade level:  

  
Kindergarten Blended Class 1 Blended Class 2 Distance Learning  

22 (11/11) 21 (11/10) 14 

1st Grade 

16 per classroom 

per guideline 
capacity 

Blended Class 1 Blended Class 2 Distance Learning  

26 (13/13) 26 (13/13) 18 

2nd Grade 

*11 per classroom  

Blended Class 1 Blended Class 2 DL 1 DL 2 

25 (*12/13) 25 (*12/13) 17 18 

3rd Grade 

12 per classroom  

Blended Class 1 Blended Class 2 Distance Learning  

23 (11/12) 23 (11/12) 26 

4th Grade 

11-14 per 
classroom 

Blended Class 1 Blended Class 2 Blended Class 3 Distance Learning  

18 (9/9) 18 (9/9) 17 (8/9) 25 

5th Grade 

12-16 per 
classroom 

Blended Class 1 Blended Class 2 Distance Learning  

21 (10/11) 22 (11/11) 21 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   TBD if BASRP and Transportation programs return under a hybrid model.  

ACTION/DISCUSSION E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 192



 

Robert H. Down Reopening Overview 2020-2021 
(Updated November 2020 - Pending Board Approval) 

Introduction - This is an overview of the current plan at Robert H. Down Elementary School. Specifics to each 

area will be provided prior to a district survey asking parents to decide between distance learning or blended 

learning. Every aspect of this plan follows current state and county guidelines regarding physical distancing to 

keep all staff and students safe as we return to school. The plan must also be flexible enough to allow us to 

shift into a full distance learning program if we are ordered by county officials to do so. This overview is written 

following current county guidelines. As the guidelines change, our plan for reopening may be adjusted. We 

realize that this will not answer all of our community’s questions, so if you have questions or comments, please 

contact Principal Sean Keller by email at skeller@pgusd.org or feel free to text at (831) 275-0083. 
 

Two Programs Offered - Parents would choose one. 

1. Full Distance Learning - Students who are medically compromised, per CA Senate Bill 98, and students 

choosing to remain in Distance Learning do not attend school and participate in distance learning every 

day 

2. Blended Learning program - Students attend school four days each week in AM or PM cohort and 

participate in asynchronous distance learning at home depending on their cohort time. 
  

Full Distance Learning 

● Students do all learning from home 

● Daily live interaction with a teacher 

● All testing is done online 

● Instruction will be computer based, but also include traditional materials (paper, workbooks, 

manipulatives, etc.) distributed regularly 

● Distance Learning program developed by each grade level 

● Will have a combination of live instruction (synchronous) and recorded instruction (asynchronous) 

● Attendance and online engagement will be monitored 
 

Blended Learning Program 

Weekly Attendance for Live Instruction - Students attend school four days each week in AM or PM cohort. 

When not at school, students participate in asynchronous distance learning at home. Ongoing 

cleaning/disinfection will occur throughout each day along with nightly custodial services. Groups would be 

decided by alphabetical order. Considerations will made for pairing siblings across sites along with students utilizing 

pods to the best of our ability.  

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

Morning Meeting for all 
students.  
 
 
Teacher Planning & DL 

AM Group 
(PM Asynchronous) 
 

PM Group 
(AM Asynchronous) 

AM Group 
(PM Asynchronous) 
 

PM Group 
(AM Asynchronous) 

AM Group 
(PM Asynchronous) 
 

PM Group 
(AM Asynchronous) 

AM Group 
(PM Asynchronous) 
 

PM Group 
(AM Asynchronous) 

Bell Schedule (Working Draft)- Staggered Start/End Times - Staggered start and end times allow for smaller 

groups arriving and leaving campus. 

ACTION/DISCUSSION E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 193

mailto:skeller@pgusd.org


Grade Cohort Group Start Time Dismissal  
(Instructional Minutes) 

 
Kindergarten  

AM Group 8:30  10:30 (120) 

PM Group 12:00 2:00 (120) 

 
1st & 2nd  

AM Group 8:30 11:00 (150) 

PM Group 12:30 3:00 (150) 

 
3rd, 4th, & 5th 

AM Group 8:45 11:15 (150) 

PM Group 12:45 3:15 (150) 

SDC AM Group 9:00 11:45 (150) 

 

Student Drop Off & Pick Up  

● Student temperatures will be taken but not recorded. Parents will be contacted for students with a fever of greater 

than 100.4 degrees 

● Students will use a different campus entrance based on their classroom location 

○ Access Area A: Drive up drop off/pick up  using Spruce Ave. 

○ Access Area B. Parents may drive onto campus for drop off uisg Spruce Ave. gate 

○ Access Area C: Drive up drop off/pick up using Pine Ave. near Co-Op  

○ Access Area D: Drive up drop off/pick up using Pine Ave. bus area  

● Parents will not be allowed to accompany students inside the gates 

● Students will enter A, B, C, or D access areas according to their classroom location (map below) 

 
● Estimated number of students using each access point 

○ Access A (with Room E-1 using D Access): AM - 39 students, PM - 37 students 

ACTION/DISCUSSION E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 194



○ Access B: AM - 28 students, PM - 29 students 

○ Access C: AM - 43 students, PM - 41 students (Possible switch of entry for one class to reduce #) 

○ Access D: AM - 37 students, PM - 36 students 

 

Special Education 

● Our SDC/Inclusion students will be invited back to campus on Tuesday and Wednesday mornings in accordance 

with the California Department of Education guidelines allowing for small cohorts of special populations of 

students to return to live instruction 

● When all students return to school, the SDC/Inclusion schedule will match that of their general education peers 

 

Before and After School Recreation Program (BASRP)  

● BASRP is to be determined as our elementary schools are analyzing the viability of establishing small 

cohorts that would not mix 

 

Transportation  

● Detailed information will be available once physical distancing requirements on buses are made clear and 

accurate capacity can be determined 

 

Personal Protective Equipment 

● Students - all students would be required to wear a mask according to county guidelines. This will be adjusted if 

requirements become more lenient. Students who do not have a mask will be provided one by the school  

● Staff - All staff will be required to wear a mask and have the option of wearing a plastic face shield as well 

 

Physical Distancing 

● In Class - students will be seated six feet apart. Classes will have 8-14 students in them, 3 in SDC 

● Outside - students would remain in their class groups during recess and physical education. They will maintain six 

feet of distance in all situations where they line up 

 

Recess 

● Students will wash their hands whenever they enter or exit the classroom. Additional handwashing stations have 

been installed throughout our campus to allow up to three students to wash hands, separately, at a time  

● Classes will be given a specific area of the playground where they play for that day (one group for each play 

structure, 4-6 groups on the primary grass/field for lunch, 4-6 groups on primary playground, and 4-6 groups on 

intermediate playground) 

● We will follow all county and state guidelines regarding the sharing and disinfecting of equipment 

 

Lunch  

● AM Students will have the opportunity to grab and go lunches as they leave campus 

● PM students will eat lunch before they arrive at campus 

 

Restrooms 

● Kindergarten students will use the restroom near their classes (A wing and Portable by swings) 

● 1st through 5th grade students will use common restrooms with particular stalls assigned to each grade level 

● Two students will be allowed in at a time with adults monitoring during recess 

● One student per class may access restrooms at a time during class periods although they will not be monitored 

 

ACTION/DISCUSSION E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 195



☐Consent  

☒Action/Discussion 

☐Information/Discussion 

☐Public Hearing 

 

SUBJECT: Approval of Pacific Grove Middle School Site Hybrid Schedule (Plan) 

 

DATE: December 10, 2020 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Sean Roach, Pacific Grove Middle School Principal 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: (Sean Roach, Pacific Grove Middle School Principal) The Administration 

recommends that the Board approve one of two options of the Pacific Grove Middle School schedule 

(plan), as presented. The first plan submitted for approval is the A/B Hybrid schedule, in which students 

would attend full time (three classes) on site two days a week. The second plan submitted for approval is 

the AM/PM Hybrid schedule, in which all students would be attending school on site four days per week, 

either in the morning or afternoon. These plans are based on State/County guidelines, as well as direction 

from the Board and committee members.  

 

BACKGROUND:  

These drafts (A/B and AM/PM) are in response to the board's wish to have students receive direct 

instruction from their teacher of record. These schedules are our second and third drafts respectively.  The 

first draft is our A/B model, and mirrors our current full distance learning schedule. The second draft is 

our AM/PM model, and would host students four half days per week either in the morning or the 

afternoon. For the purposes of context, we surveyed our families and found that 28.6% of respondents 

wish to continue with distance learning, while the remaining 71.4% would participate in a Hybrid model. 

Those numbers equate to hosting 329 students in a Hybrid model and 132 students to continue with 

distance learning. These numbers are estimates, as we seek definitive parent responses to provide the 

most accurate numbers for the division of cohorts. In both models, PGMS would host approximately 165 

students either two full days per week or 165 students in the AM and the other 165 students in the PM.  

Monday’s would continue as currently scheduled and dedicated to asynchronous study and delivery of our 

Character Strong character program.  The hybrid model selected would be used if Monterey County 

enters the Red Tier.  
 

INFORMATION:  

I have included both schedules below for comparison purposes. Both schedules have been shared with 

staff and families.   

 

 
 

ACTION/DISCUSSION F

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 196



 

ACTION/DISCUSSION F

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 197



 
 

PGMS Family Overview for Blended Learning 2020-2021 (DRAFT) 
(Updated November 2020 - Pending Board Approval) 

 
 

Introduction - This is an overview of the DRAFT Blended Learning plan for Pacific Grove Middle School. 
Every aspect of this plan follows current state and county guidelines regarding safety measures and physical 
distancing to keep all staff and students safe as we return to face-to-face instruction. The plan is flexible 
enough to allow us to shift into and out of a full distance learning program if we are ordered by county officials 
to do so. As the county guidelines change, our plan for reopening may be adjusted. We realize that this will not 
answer all of our community’s questions, so if you have questions or comments, please contact Principal Sean 
Roach by email at sroach@pgusd.org. 
 
Two Programs Offered - Families would choose one 

1. Full Distance Learning - Students who are medically compromised, have family members that are high 
risk, or who do not feel comfortable attending in-person classes at PGMS do not attend school but 
participate in distance learning every day. 

2. Blended Learning program - Students attend school half-time with the other half accessed via distance 
learning.  

 
Full Distance Learning 

● Students do all learning from home. 
● Daily live interaction with a teacher and peers. 
● All testing is done online. 
● Instruction will be computer based, but also include traditional materials (paper, workbooks, 

manipulatives, etc.), distributed as necessary. 
● Will have a combination of live instruction (synchronous) and recorded instruction (asynchronous). 
● Attendance and online engagement will be monitored. 

 
Blended Learning Program 
Weekly Attendance for Live Instruction - We currently have two draft schedules for this model, the “AM/PM” 
and the “A/B.”  In both models, Mondays continue to be asynchronous work days, with the virtual Advisory 
classes. Office hours will be offered before and/or after school. 
 
 

ACTION/DISCUSSION F

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 198



Blended Learning Program (Cont.) 
AM/PM -  In the AM/PM model, students come to school four half-days each week, either in the morning cohort (“A”) or in 
the afternoon cohort (“B”). The morning cohort (“A”) attends school in the mornings, and works asynchronously in the 
afternoons, and the afternoon cohort works asynchronously in the mornings, and attends school in the afternoons. 
All students attend three classes each day, and each class is 50 minutes long. In this model, there is no lunch period. 

 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

A/B - In the A/B model, students come to school two days each week, either Tues/Weds (cohort “A”) or Thurs/Fri (cohort 
“B”). Each cohort works asynchronously on days they do not come to campus. Students attend three classes each day 
they are at school, and each class is 80 minutes long. In this model, a lunch period (45 minutes) is built in.  

 

 
 

AM/PM 
Model 

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

Teacher 
Planning, 
Advisory & DL 

AM Group 
(PM Asynchronous) 
 
PM Group 
(AM Asynchronous) 

AM Group 
(PM Asynchronous) 
 
PM Group 
(AM Asynchronous) 

AM Group 
(PM Asynchronous) 
 
PM Group 
(AM Asynchronous) 

AM Group 
(PM Asynchronous) 
 
PM Group 
(AM Asynchronous) 

 

A/B 
Model 

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

Teacher Planning, 
Advisory & DL 

Cohort  A 
(Cohort B Asynch) 

Cohort  A 
(Cohort B Asynch) 

Cohort  B 
(Cohort A Asynch) 

Cohort  B 
(Cohort A Asynch) 

ACTION/DISCUSSION F

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 199



Student Drop Off & Pick Up  
● Students may arrive on campus up to 15 minutes prior to the start of their day. 
● Students will be assigned a campus entrance in close proximity to the location of their first class of the day. 
● Students must head directly to their assigned point of entry, and wait in the designated area to be let in the 

building. 

 
● Student temperatures will be taken, but not recorded, at their assigned point of entry. Parents will be contacted for 

students with a fever of greater than 100.4 degrees. 
● Students will be monitored as they move into and out of the building in order to ensure that safety protocols 

(social distancing, mask wearing, etc.) are being followed. 
● Parents will not be allowed to accompany students on to campus before, during, or after school. 

 
Transportation - Detailed information will be available once physical distancing requirements on buses are made clear. 
 
Personal Protective Equipment 

● Students - all students would be required to wear a mask according to county guidelines at this time. This will be 
adjusted if and when guidance changes. Students who do not have a mask will be provided one by the school.  

● Staff - All staff will be required to wear a mask and have the option of wearing a plastic face shield as well. 
 
Physical Distancing 

● In Class - Students will be seated six feet apart while in classrooms.  
● In Hallways - Staff will supervise hallways at all passing periods to remind students to maintain six feet of physical 

distance.  
● Outside - during PE and any time they line up outside, students will maintain six feet of social distance. 

 
 
 
 
 

ACTION/DISCUSSION F

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 200



Lunch 
● Students will wash their hands or use hand sanitizer before and after Lunch. 
● School lunches will be provided to ALL students at no cost. 

○ AM/PM Model - AM students will be provided a “grab-n-go” lunch as they leave campus. PM students will 
be provided a “grab-n-go” lunch to eat immediately upon arriving at school.  

○ A/B Model - All students will be provided a “grab-n-go” lunch to eat during the lunch break.  
● There will be no a la carte items available for purchase. 
● Students will be placed in assigned groups for lunch. Each group will be given a specific area on the field or in the 

eating areas where they will eat lunch. Groups will be rotated through the different eating areas. 
● All county and state guidelines regarding the sharing and disinfecting of equipment will be followed. 

 
Restrooms 

● Students will use common restrooms with particular stalls assigned to each grade level. 
● Two students will be allowed in at a time during lunch, with adults monitoring  
● Students may access restrooms during class periods.  

 
 

ACTION/DISCUSSION F

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 201



☐Consent  
☒Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
SUBJECT: Approval of Pacific Grove High School Site Hybrid Schedule 
 
DATE: December 10, 2020 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Lito M. García, Pacific Grove High School Principal 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: The Administration recommends that the Board approve the Pacific Grove 
High School hybrid schedule, as presented. The plan is based on State/County guidelines with input from 
staff. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: As we know Monterey County is currently in the Purple Tier which prevents us from 
having school-wide in-person learning. However, we do need to continue developing plans for the future 
when we are given the opportunity to have all students on campus through an in-person hybrid model. In 
late July we approved an in-person Hybrid model, this occurred a day before we learned that we would 
have to start the 2020-2021school year in Distance Learning. Based on what we are learning through 
Distance Learning instruction we have decided to look at alternate in-person hybrid schedules that are 
modeled after our current Distance Learning schedule. 
 
 
INFORMATION: This schedule keeps our current Distance Learning bell schedule but creates an 
opportunity for students (A and B Group) who choose In-person Hybrid to be on campus once a day - 
Tuesday through Friday. Mondays will continue as asynchronous with a time built in for students to 
check-in. A and B groups will be determined once we have accurate numbers of who is able to be on 
campus and who will continue with Distance Learning (C Group). We continue to develop plans for 
students who will participate in Distance Learning only (C Group). Re-rostering of students may need to 
take place. 
 
SCHEDULE ONE 

 
  

DAY OF THE 
WEEK 

PERIOD 1 
9:00-10:00 

PERIOD 2 
10:30-11:30 

LUNCH 
11:30 - 
12:30 

PERIOD 4 
12:30-1:30 

PERIOD 6 
2:00-3:00 

MONDAY Asynchronous 
All Students 

Synchronous 
10:30 to 11:00 
All Students  

LUNCH Asynchronous 
All Students 

Asynchronous 
All Students 

TUESDAY In-Person 
 A GROUP 

Synchronous 
All Students 

LUNCH In-Person 
 B GROUP  

Synchronous 
All Students 

WEDNESDAY In-Person 
 B GROUP 

Synchronous 
All Students 

LUNCH In-Person  
A GROUP 

Synchronous 
All Students 

THURSDAY Synchronous 
All Students 

In-Person  
A GROUP 

LUNCH Synchronous 
All Students 

In-Person  
B GROUP 

FRIDAY Synchronous 
All Students 

In-Person  
B GROUP 

LUNCH Synchronous 
All Students 

In-Person 
 A GROUP 

ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 202



 
PGHS Overview for Hybrid Learning 2020-2021 

 
 

Introduction  
This is an overview of the Hybrid Learning plan for Pacific Grove High School. Every aspect of this plan follows current state 
and county guidelines regarding safety measures and physical distancing to keep all staff and students safe as we return to 
face-to-face instruction. The plan is flexible enough to allow us to shift into and out of a full distance learning program if we are 
ordered by county officials to do so. As the county guidelines change, our plan for reopening may be adjusted. We realize that 
this will not answer all of our community’s questions, so if you have questions or comments, please contact Principal Lito 
García by email at lgarcia@pgusd.org. 
 
Two Programs Offered - Families would choose one 

1. Full Distance Learning - Students who are medically compromised, have family members that are high risk, or who do 
not feel comfortable attending in-person classes at PGHS do not attend school but participate in distance learning 
every day. 

2. Hybrid Learning program - Students attend school half-time with the other half accessed via distance learning.  
 
Full Distance Learning 

● Students do all learning from home. 
● The instructional model is still in development. 
● Attendance and online engagement will be monitored. 

 
Hybrid Learning Program 
 

 
This schedule keeps our current Distance Learning bell schedule but creates an opportunity for students (A and B Group) who 
choose In-person Hybrid to be on campus once a day - Tuesday through Friday. A and B groups will be determined once we 
have accurate numbers of who is able to be on campus and who will continue with Distance Learning (C Group). We continue 

DAY OF THE WEEK PERIOD 1 
9:00-10:00 

PERIOD 2 
10:30-11:30 

LUNCH 
11:30 - 
12:30 

PERIOD 4 
12:30-1:30 

PERIOD 6 
2:00-3:00 

MONDAY Asynchronous 
All Students 

Synchronous 
10:30 to 11:00 
All Students  

 Asynchronous 
All Students 

Asynchronous 
All Students 

TUESDAY In-Person 
 A GROUP 

Synchronous 
All Students 

 In-Person 
 B GROUP  

Synchronous 
All Students 

WEDNESDAY In-Person 
 B GROUP 

Synchronous 
All Students 

 In-Person  
A GROUP 

Synchronous 
All Students 

THURSDAY Synchronous 
All Students 

In-Person  
A GROUP 

 Synchronous 
All Students 

In-Person  
B GROUP 

FRIDAY Synchronous 
All Students 

In-Person  
B GROUP 

 Synchronous 
All Students 

In-Person 
 A GROUP 

ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 203



to develop plans for students who will participate in Distance Learning (C Group). Re-rostering of students may need to take 
place. 
 
Safety Procedures  

 
 

● Hallways, and entries and exits, will be labeled to help maintain physical distancing.  
● Student temperatures will be taken, but not recorded, at their assigned point of entry. Parents/Guardians will be 

contacted for students with a fever of greater than 100.4 degrees. 
● Students will be monitored as they move into and out of the building in order to ensure that safety protocols (social 

distancing, mask-wearing, etc.) are being followed. 
● Parents/Guardians will not be allowed to accompany students on campus before, during, or after school. 

 
Personal Protective Equipment 

● Students - all students would be required to wear a mask according to county guidelines at this time. This will be 
adjusted if and when guidance changes. Students who do not have a mask will be provided one by the school.  

● Staff - All staff will be required to wear a mask and have the option of wearing a plastic face shield as well. 
 

Physical Distancing 
● In-Class - Students will be seated six feet apart while in classrooms.  
● Pathways - Staff will supervise hallways at all passing periods to remind students to maintain six feet of physical 

distance.  
● Outside activities - during PE and any time they line up outside, students will maintain six feet of social distance. 

 
Transportation  

● Detailed information will be available once physical distancing requirements on buses are made available. 

ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 204



 
 

Lunch 
● School lunches will be provided to ALL students at no cost. 
● Lunches will be “grab-n-go.” 
● There will be no a la carte items available for purchase. 

 
Restrooms 

● Restroom occupancy will be limited based on the number of sinks per restroom e.g. If a particular restroom has three 
sinks occupancy will be limited to two students maximum. 

● Students may access restrooms during class periods.  
● Outdoor hand washing stations will be set up as needed. 

ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 205



☐Consent  
☒Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
SUBJECT: Approval of Pacific Grove Community High School Site Hybrid Schedule 
 
DATE: December 10, 2020 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Lito M. García, Pacific Grove Community High School Principal 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: The Administration recommends that the Board approve the Pacific Grove 
Community High School hybrid schedule, as presented. The plan is based on State/County guidelines 
with input from staff. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: As we know Monterey County is currently in the Purple Tier which prevents us from 
having school-wide in-person learning. However, we do need to continue developing plans for the future 
when we are given the opportunity to have all students on campus through an in-person hybrid model. In 
late July we approved an in-person Hybrid model, this occurred a day before we learned that we would 
have to start the 2020-2021school year in Distance Learning. Based on what we are learning through 
Distance Learning instruction we have decided to look at alternate in-person hybrid schedules that are 
modeled after our current Distance Learning schedule. 
 
 
INFORMATION: This schedule creates an opportunity for students (A and B Group) who choose 
In-person Hybrid to be on campus once a day on Tuesday and Thursday. All students would participate in 
distance learning on Wednesdays and Fridays. Mondays will continue as asynchronous with a time built 
in for students to check-in.  A and B groups will be determined once we have accurate numbers of who is 
able to be on campus and who will continue with Distance Learning (C Group). We continue to develop 
plans for students who will participate in Distance Learning (C Group). 
  

ACTION/DISCUSSION H

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 206



SCHEDULE TWO HYBRID 

 

DAY OF 
WEEK 

BELL SCHEDULE TYPE OF 
LEARNING 

STUDENTS 

MONDAY SYNCHRONOUS 10:00 am TO 10:20 am 
ASYNCHRONOUS 

SYNCHRONOUS  
ASYNCHRONOUS 

ALL STUDENTS 

TUESDAY 9:00 am to 11:00 am GROUP A 
 

11:00 AM TO 12:00 PM CLEANING 
 

12:00 pm to 2:00 pm GROUP  B 
 

ASYNCHRONOUS 60 minutes 

 
 
 

IN-PERSON 

GROUP A AM 
 
 
 

GROUP B PM 

WEDNESDAY 9:00 am to 11:00 am All Students 
 

1:00 pm to 2:30 pm Academic 
Support 

 
ASYNCHRONOUS 60 minutes 

SYNCHRONOUS 
 

IN-PERSON AS 
NEEDED 

 
ALL STUDENTS 

THURSDAY 9:00 am to 11:00 am GROUP A 
 

11:00 AM TO 12:00 PM CLEANING 
 

12:00 pm to 2:00 pm GROUP  B 
 

ASYNCHRONOUS 60 minutes 

 
 
 

IN-PERSON 

GROUP A AM 
 
 
 

GROUP B PM 

FRIDAY 9:00 am to 11:00 am All Students 
 

1:00 pm to 2:30 pm Academic 
Support 

 
ASYNCHRONOUS 60 minutes 

SYNCHRONOUS 
 

IN-PERSON AS 
NEEDED 

 
ALL STUDENTS 

ACTION/DISCUSSION H

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 207



 
PGCHS Overview for Hybrid Learning 2020-2021 

 
 

Introduction  
This is an overview of the Hybrid Learning plan for Pacific Grove Community High School. Every aspect of this plan follows 
current state and county guidelines regarding safety measures and physical distancing to keep all staff and students safe as 
we return to face-to-face instruction. The plan is flexible enough to allow us to shift into and out of a full distance learning 
program if we are ordered by county officials to do so. As the county guidelines change, our plan for reopening may be 
adjusted. We realize that this will not answer all of our community’s questions, so if you have questions or comments, please 
contact Principal Lito García by email at lgarcia@pgusd.org. 
 
Two Programs Offered - Families would choose one 

1. Full Distance Learning - Students who are medically compromised, have family members that are high risk, or who do 
not feel comfortable attending in-person classes at PGCHS do not attend school but participate in distance learning 
every day. 

2. Hybrid Learning program - Students attend school half-time with the other half accessed via distance learning.  
 
Full Distance Learning 

● Students do all learning from home. 
● The instructional model is still in development. 
● Attendance and online engagement will be monitored. 

 
Hybrid Learning Program 
 

This schedule creates an opportunity for students (A and B Group) who choose In-person Hybrid to be on campus 
once a day on Tuesday and Thursday. A and B groups will be determined once we have accurate numbers of who 

DAY OF WEEK BELL SCHEDULE TYPE OF LEARNING STUDENTS 

MONDAY SYNCHRONOUS 10:00 TO 10:20 AM 
ASYNCHRONOUS 

SYNCHRONOUS  
ASYNCHRONOUS 

ALL STUDENTS 

TUESDAY 9:00 am to 11:00 am GROUP A 
11:00 AM TO 12:00 PM CLEANING 

12:00 pm to 2:00 pm GROUP  B 
ASYNCHRONOUS 60 minutes 

 
 
 

IN PERSON 

GROUP A AM 
 
 
 

GROUP B PM 

WEDNESDAY 9:00 am to 11:00 am All Students 
1:00 pm to 2:30 pm Academic Support 

ASYNCHRONOUS 60 minutes 

SYNCHRONOUS 
 

IN-PERSON AS NEEDED 

 
ALL STUDENTS 

THURSDAY 9:00 am to 11:00 am GROUP A 
11:00 AM TO 12:00 PM CLEANING 

12:00 pm to 2:00 pm GROUP  B 
ASYNCHRONOUS 60 minutes 

 
 
 

IN PERSON 

GROUP A AM 
 
 
 

GROUP B PM 

FRIDAY 9:00 am to 11:00 am All Students 
1:00 pm to 2:30 pm Academic Support 

ASYNCHRONOUS 60 minutes 

SYNCHRONOUS 
 

IN-PERSON AS NEEDED 

 
ALL STUDENTS 

ACTION/DISCUSSION H

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 208



is able to be on campus and who will continue with Distance Learning (C Group). We continue to develop plans for 
students who will participate in Distance Learning (C Group). 
 
 
Safety Procedures  

 
● Hallways, and entries and exits, will be labeled to help maintain physical distancing.  
● Student temperatures will be taken, but not recorded, at their assigned point of entry. Parents/Guardians will be 

contacted for students with a fever of greater than 100.4 degrees. 
● Students will be monitored as they move into and out of the building in order to ensure that safety protocols (social 

distancing, mask-wearing, etc.) are being followed. 
● Parents/Guardians will not be allowed to accompany students on campus before, during, or after school. 

 
Personal Protective Equipment 

● Students - all students would be required to wear a mask according to county guidelines at this time. This will be 
adjusted if and when guidance changes. Students who do not have a mask will be provided one by the school.  

● Staff - All staff will be required to wear a mask and have the option of wearing a plastic face shield as well. 
 

Physical Distancing 
● In-Class - Students will be seated six feet apart while in classrooms.  
● Hallway - Staff will supervise the hallway to remind students to maintain six feet of physical distance.  
● Outside activities - during PE and other activities and any time they line up outside, students will maintain six feet of 

social distance. 
 
Transportation  

● Detailed information will be available once physical distancing requirements on buses are made available. 
 
Lunch 

● School lunches will be provided to ALL students at no cost. 
● Lunches will be “grab-n-go.” 
● There will be no a la carte items available for purchase. 

 
Restrooms 

● Students may access restrooms during class periods. 

ACTION/DISCUSSION H

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 209



  

☐Consent  

☒Action/Discussion 

☐Information/Discussion 

☐Public Hearing 

 

SUBJECT: Pacific Grove Unified School District- Pacific Grove Teachers Association Special  

Education Small Group Addendum to COVID-19 Memorandum of Understanding 

 

DATE:  December 10, 2020 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Billie Mankey, Director of Human Resources;  

Principal Buck Roggeman, PGUSD Lead Negotiator 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The District Administration recommends the Board review and approve the Special Education Small 

Group Cohorts Addendum to the Memorandum of Understanding between Pacific Grove Unified School 

District and Pacific Grove Teachers Association Regarding Reopening Schools during COVID19. 

  

BACKGROUND:  

On August 24, 2020, the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) issued Guidance 

Related to Cohorts which sets minimum health and safety guidelines across multiple sectors 

serving youth, including childcare and schools (public and private). The purpose of this guidance 

is to establish minimum parameters for providing specialized services, targeted services and 

support for students while schools are otherwise closed for in-person instruction in ways that 

maintain the focus on health and safety to minimize transmission. Using this guidance, PGTA 

and PGUSD negotiators met to develop an addendum to our current memorandum of 

understanding to set working conditions for those who volunteer to teach these small special 

education cohorts in person.  

Representing the Pacific Grove Teachers Association were President Shannon McCarty, Anne 

Hober, Karen Levy, Lauren Davis, Sydney Dacuyan, Wendy Milligan, Dessie Zanger, Kathy Wheeler, 

Pam Gaul, Todd Buller, and CTA Representative Christal Hall.  

Representing Pacific Grove Unified School District were lead negotiator Buck Roggeman, Superintendent 

Dr. Ralph Porras, Assistant Superintendent Song Chin-Bendib, Director Billie Mankey, Director Ani 

Silva, and legal counsel provided by Lou Lozano. 

 

INFORMATION: 

The teams met for three sessions of negotiations on Nov. 20, Nov. 24, and Nov. 30. The addendum 

includes guidelines in the following areas: health and safety, campus safety procedures, small group 

cohorts, personal protective equipment, health screening and notification, industrial accident 

leave/workers’ compensation, and the interactive accommodation process. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Teachers participating in this voluntary program will be compensated for six hours of time to prepare for 

in person instruction at the hourly instructional rate resulting in a cost to the district of approximately 

$2,100. Additionally, teachers volunteering for this program may receive 5 additional sick days after 

workers’ compensation leave is exhausted if they contract COVID-19 in the workplace.  

ACTION/DISCUSSION I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 210



ACTION/DISCUSSION I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 211



ACTION/DISCUSSION I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 212



ACTION/DISCUSSION I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 213



ACTION/DISCUSSION I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 214



ACTION/DISCUSSION I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 215



ACTION/DISCUSSION I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 216



ACTION/DISCUSSION I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 217



ACTION/DISCUSSION I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 218



ACTION/DISCUSSION I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 219



ACTION/DISCUSSION I

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 220



☐Consent  

☐Information/Discussion 

☒Action/Discussion 

☐Public Hearing 

 

SUBJECT: Board Calendar/Future Meetings 

 

DATE:  December 10, 2020 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The Administration recommends that the Board review and possibly modify the schedule of meeting dates on 

the attached calendar and determine, given information from the Administration, whether additional Board 

dates or modifications need to be established.  

 

BACKGROUND:  

 

The Board has approved Bylaw 9320, which states that regular Board meetings be held on the first and third 

Thursday of each month, from August through June. At the annual organizational meeting held in December, 

Trustees approves the meeting calendar as presented. The calendar is reviewed at each Board meeting.  

 

INFORMATION: 

 

Changes to the Board meeting dates must be approved by a majority vote of the Trustees.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

ACTION/DISCUSSION J

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 221



Board Meeting Calendar, 2020-21 School Year August-December 

 
Thursday 

July 16 

Regular Board Meeting VIRTUAL 

✓ Academic and Operations Reopening Plan 

Thursday 

July 23 

Special Board Meeting VIRTUAL 

✓ Academic and Operations Reopening Plan 

Thursday 

July 30 

Special Board Meeting VIRTUAL 

✓ Academic and Operations Reopening Plan 

Thursday 

Aug. 20 

Regular Board Meeting VIRTUAL 

✓ Student Enrollment Update 

✓ Back to School Night Dates 

✓ Property Tax Report 

✓ Quarterly Facilities Project Updates* 

✓ Quarterly District Safety Update*  

Thursday 

Sept. 3 

Regular Board Meeting  VIRTUAL 

✓ Unaudited Actual Report  

✓ Budget Revision #1 

✓ Local Control Accountability Plan Review 

Thursday 

Sept. 17 

Regular Board Meeting VIRTUAL 

✓ Williams Uniform Complaint Report 

Thursday 

Sept. 24 

Regular Board Meeting VIRTUAL 

✓ Learning Continuity Plan                                                                                           

Thursday 

Oct. 1 

Regular Board Meeting VIRTUAL 

✓   Week of the School Administrator 

 

Thursday 

Oct. 22 

Regular Board Meeting VIRTUAL 

✓ Quarterly District Safety Update*                                                  

✓ Budget Revision #1 on 2020-21 Working Budget (Preliminary First Interim) 

Thursday 

Nov. 12 

Regular Board Meeting  VIRTUAL 

✓    

Thursday 

Nov. 19 

Regular Board Meeting  VIRTUAL 

✓ Intent Form Due (to serve as Board President or Vice President)    

✓ Quarterly Facilities Project Updates* 

 

Thursday 

Dec. 10 

Regular Board Meeting VIRTUAL 

✓ First Interim Report 

✓ Budget Revision #2 

✓ Review of Special Education Contracts                                           

Thursday 

Dec. 17 

 

Organizational Meeting VIRTUAL 

✓ Election of 2020-21 Board President and Clerk 

✓ PGHS Course Bulletin Information/Discussion 

✓ Williams Uniform Complaint Report 

✓ Review of Legal Services Costs  
*Quarterly District Safety Update and Quarterly Facilities Projects Update as needed  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION/DISCUSSION J

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 222



Board Meeting Calendar, 2020-21 School Year January- June 

 
 

Thursday 

Jan. 7 

Regular Board Meeting VIRTUAL 

✓ Report on Governor’s Budget Proposal                                             

✓ Preliminary Enrollment Projection for 2021-22 

✓ Property Tax Update 

✓ PGHS Course Bulletin Action/Discussion 

Thursday 

Jan. 21 

Regular Board Meeting VIRTUAL 

✓ School Accountability Report Cards       

✓ Employee Recognition 

✓ Acceptance of the 2019-20 Audit Report                                           

Thursday 

Feb. 4 

 

Regular Board Meeting VIRTUAL 

✓ Budget Development Calendar 

✓ Possible Personnel Action Presented as Information 

✓ Preliminary Review of Site Master Schedules 

✓ Possible Personnel Action (RIF) 

✓ Quarterly Facilities Project Updates* 

Thursday 

Mar. 4 

Regular Board Meeting VIRTUAL 

✓ Second Interim Report 

✓ Budget Revision #3 

✓ Open House Schedules Reviewed 

✓ TRAN Resolution  

Thursday 

Mar. 18 

Regular Board Meeting  VIRTUAL 

✓ Budget Projections and Assumptions 

✓ Williams/Valenzuela Uniform Complaint Report 

Thursday 

Apr. 1 

Regular Board Meeting  VIRTUAL 

✓ Review of Strategic Plan and LCAP (as needed) 

✓ Approve 2021-22 Aug.- Dec. Board Meeting Calendar  

✓ Quarterly District Safety Update 

Thursday 

April 22 

Regular Board Meeting  VIRTUAL 

✓ Review of Site Master Schedules 

✓ Review of Strategic Plan and LCAP (as needed) 

✓ California Day of the Teacher 

✓ Week of the CSEA Employee 

✓ Begin Superintendent Evaluation 

Thursday 

May 6 

Regular Board Meeting  VIRTUAL 

✓ Continue Superintendent Evaluation 

Thursday 

May 20 

 

Regular Board Meeting VIRTUAL 

✓ Complete Superintendent’s Evaluation 

✓ Review Governor’s Revised Budget 

✓ Suspensions/Expulsions Annual Report 

Thursday 

June 3 

Regular Board Meeting VIRTUAL 

✓ 2021-22 Budget Public Hearing 

✓ Retiree Recognition 

✓ LCAP Public Hearing 

Thursday 

June 17 

Regular Board Meeting VIRTUAL 

✓ Approval of Contracts and Purchase Orders for 2021-22 

✓ Review of Legal Services Costs  

✓ Solicitation of Funds Report 

✓ Consolidated Application 

✓ Approval of LCAP 

✓ 2021-22 Budget Adoption 

*Quarterly District Safety Update and Quarterly Facilities Projects Update as needed  

 

ACTION/DISCUSSION J

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 223



☐Consent  

☐Action/Discussion 

☒Information/Discussion 

☐Public Hearing 

 

SUBJECT: District Update on Response to COVID-19 

 

DATE: December 10, 2020 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent 

 

 

INFORMATION: 

 

The District Administration will update the Board, staff and community on current District response and 

protocols to COVID-19. 

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 224



  

☐Consent  

☒Information/Discussion 

☐Action/Discussion 

 

SUBJECT: Review Status of Special Education Contracts 

 

DATE:  December 10, 2020 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Clare Davies, Director of Student Services  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

The administration recommends that the School Board review the present and projected status of 

Special Education contracts. 
 

 

BACKGROUND:  

 

Students with disabilities often require services beyond those which are provided through the 

district’s special education program and personnel.  This requires the district to enter into 

contracts with outside providers to make these additional services available.  Outside providers 

may include non-public schools, non-public agencies, independent contractors, and the Monterey 

County Office of Education.  Contracts are adjusted throughout the school year as the needs of 

students change due to IEP placements and IEP team decisions. 

 

 
INFORMATION:  

 

Projected cost of contracts was presented and approved by the School Board on June 18, 2020.  

Since that time several new contracts have been approved by the Board throughout the school 

year.  The Board requests a quarterly review of the status of contracts with outside providers. 

 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Budgeted $279,706 

YTD $32,869 

 

 

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 225



Contract
Date Board 

Approved 

Original 

Contract 

Expenditures as 

of 12/1/2020

Central Coast Kids and Families, LLC 11/12/2020  $            45,800  $                               - 

F.A.S.T. 

Interpreters for all languages
6/18/2020  $              6,000  $                          180 

IsoRhythyms Music Therapy** 6/18/2020  $            29,820  $                     12,489 

Medical Billing Technology ±

Medi-Cal Direct Billing for LEA 
6/20/2019  $              6,400  $                       5,900 

Monterey County Office of Education*

Infant, Itinerant, SDC/Tuition, 

Transportation

6/18/2020  $          129,559 
 Billback Quarterly 

Fund Transfer 

Planned Parenthood Mar Monte 6/18/2020  $                 500  $                               - 

Psyched Services

Initial & Triennial IEPs, Assessments 

and Reports

6/18/2020  $            15,000  $                     14,300 

Psyched Services **

Board Certified Behavior Analyst 

(BCBA)

10/1/2020  $              5,000  $                               - 

Psyched Services

Initial & Triennial IEPs, Assessments & 

Reports

11/19/2020  $            37,627  $                               - 

Sharon Neumann Solow

Sign Language Interpreter
6/18/2020  $              4,000  $                               - 

TOTAL 279,706$      32,869$               

** Contracts are paid out of restricted mental health funds for students on an IEP.

Special Education Contracts 2020-2021 School Year

* MCOE Projections each year: July 1st Budget Projection, December Projection, April Projection, Final 

Billback.  Original Contract based upon July 1st Budget Projection. 

± This is a renewing 5 year contract, terminates 2024. $5400 yearly rate + $500 CRCS report + 

practitioner protocols

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 226



☐Consent  

☐Action/Discussion 

☒Information/Discussion 

☐Public Hearing 

 

SUBJECT: Future Agenda Items 

 

DATE: December 10, 2020 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The Administration recommends that the Board review the list of future agenda items and direct 

Administration to add items to the list and/or schedule items for a particular agenda. 

 

BACKGROUND:  

 

Board Bylaw 9322 states in part that “Any member of the public or any Board member may request that a 

matter within the jurisdiction of the Board be placed on the agenda of a regular meeting.  The request 

[from a member of the public] must be …. submitted to the Superintendent or designee with supporting 

documents and information …” 

 

INFORMATION: 

 

Board members have the opportunity at the end of Open Session in a Regular Board meeting to request 

that items be added to the list for a future meeting.  Depending upon the timeliness of the item, it may 

also be assigned a particular meeting date. 

 

The following is a list of future agenda items as of the December 10, 2020 Regular Board Meeting: 

• A member of the public requested Dual Language Elementary Program (March 18, 2021) 

• Board requested an update about teacher housing (TBD) 

• Board requested a presentation on Diversify Our Narrative 

• Board requested a renewed discussion about district solar panels (Spring 2021) 

• A member of the public requested that the Board consider streaming all Board meetings after 

COVID conditions 

• A member of the public requested a review of Board Policy 6154 Homework/Make Up Work 

regarding homework assignments over school breaks and holidays 

• A member of the public requested the District review how to improve Distance Learning for 

students and families including: 

▪ Survey to families 

▪ Review of instructional minutes of the elementary schools 

▪ Review of grades and enrollment levels 

• Board requested academic review of grades by grade level including AP for middle and high 

school 

 

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of December 10, 2020 227


	AGENDA
	CONSENT
	Minutes of November 19, 2020
	Certificated Assignment Order #8
	Classified Assignment Order #8
	Acceptance of Donations
	Warrant Schedule No. 626
	Cash Receipts Report No. 2
	Revolving Cash Report No. 1
	Contract for Services with John Aulenta
	Contract for Services with BMR Health Services Inc.
	Contract for Services with Graide Network

	ACTION/DISCUSSION
	Adoption of Board Policy 0470 COVID-19 Mitigation Plan
	2020-21 First Interim Report
	Local Control Funding Forumla Budget Overview for Parents
	Forest Grove Elementary School Site Hybrid Schedule
	Robert Down Elementary School Site Hybrid Schedule
	Pacific Grove Middle School Site Hybrid Schedule
	Pacific Grove High School Site Hybrid Schedule
	Community High School Site Hybrid Schedule
	PGUSD-PGTA Special Education Small Group Addendum to COVID-19 MOU
	Board Calendar/Future Meetings

	INFORMATION/DISCUSSION
	District Update on Response to COVID-19
	Review of Special Education Contracts
	Future Agenda Items




